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NOTICE
NOTICE is hercby given that the 11" Annual General Mecting of WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA)
LIMITED will be held at its Registered Office at 2/6, Sarat Bosc Road, Kolkata -700020 on
Friday, 30™ September, 2022 at 04.30 P.M. for the following purposes:-

Ordinary Businesses:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:
a.) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company tor the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 and the Reports of the Board of Dircctors and the Auditors thereon; and
b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial vear

ended March 31, 2022 and the Report of Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of a Director  in place of Mr. Kanishka  Sethia
(DIN: 00267232) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offcrs himself for re-appointment.

_Special Businesses
3. Appointment of Ms. Rajni Mishra (DIN:07706571) as Director and also as Independent

Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Ms. Rajni Mishra (DIN:07706571), who was appointed by the Board of
Directors as an Additional Director under the category of Independent Director of the Company
with effect from 31.08.2022, under provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act™) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and relevant
Articles of Association of the Company, who holds office upto the date of this Annual General
Meeting but who is eligible for appointment as Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director
designated as [ndependent Director of the Company.

“"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committec of the Board, and in compliance with Scctions 149, 152 and 160 read
with Schedule IV, Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and
the rules made thereunder, each as amended (the “Companies Act™) and Regulation 16 (1)(b) and
Regulation 17 of the Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (1.isting Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations. 2015, as amended (the “SEBI Listing Regulations™). and other
applicahle law and pursuant to the provisions of the anticles of association of the Company. Ms.
Raymt Mishra (DIN: 07706571), who possesses relevant expertise and experience and has signified
her conscnt to act as an independent director of the Company, and submitted a declaration that she
meets the criteria for appointment of an independent director under the Companies Act and the
SCBI Listing Regulations and is otherwise eligible for appointment, and whose candidature has
been proposed, be and is hereby appointed as an independent director of the Company with
immediate ¢ffect for a period of five consceutive years commencing from 30 09 20220 shall be
entitled 1o receive sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or any committees thereof, as
may be determined by the Board from time to time.”
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TRFSOLVED FURTHFR THAT the code for independent directors as stated in Schedule IV of
Companies Act be and is hereby placed before the sharcholders of the Company for information
and for further compliance thereof by Ms. Rajni Mishra as Independent Dircctor.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the terms of appointment of Ms. Rajni Mishra as Independent
Director pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, a draft of which was circulated to the
sharcholders, be and are hereby approved and recorded.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolutions, each
of the directors of the Board, severally, be and are hereby authorized to do ali such acts, deeds,
matters and things as they may, in their absolute discretion, deem necessary, proper or desirable for
such purpese, including to make any filings, furnish any returns or submit any other documenis to
any government, statutory or regulatory authoritics as may be required, to settle any gquestion,
difficulty or doubt and to ncgotiate, finalize and cxecute all agreements, documents, papers,
instruments and writings as they may dcem necessary, proper, desirable or expedient and to give
such directions and/or instructions as they may from time to time decide and give eftect to such
modifications, terminations, changes, variations, alterations, delctions and/or additions as regards
the terms and conditions as may be required; and any documents so executed and delivered or acts
and things done or caused to be done shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of the Company
i 5o doing and any document so executed and delivered or acts and things done or caused to be
done-prior to the date hereof are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved as the act and deed of the
Company. as the case may be.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT duly certified copies of the above resolutions be furnished to
any government, statutory or regulatory authority as may be required from time to time.”

Date-  31.08.2022 By order of the Board
Place: Kolkata For Western Carriers (India) Limited

JA4E 3nS
= Q X .
(\*Q/*J Rajendra Sethi
o~ alendra § a
\C}{ @ %/;% ; ethi

.([) :5/1/ Managing Director
= DIN:00267974

Email : accounts@westcong.com
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1. A member entitled 10 attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of himself and the proxy necd not bc a member. Proxies in order to be valid
must be received by the company not less than 48 bhours before the commencement of

meeting.

? =Members/proxies attending the meeting are requesicd to bring their duly filled
admission/ attendance slips sent along with the notice of annual general meeting at the

meeting.

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised rcpresentatives to attend the
meeting are advised to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing
their representative to attend and vote at the meeting.

4. Explanatory Staiement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
relating to the Spccial Business to be transacted at the Mceting is annexed hereto.

S. Members are requested to updating their e-mail address(es) with the Depository
Participant(s) (in case of Shares held in dematerialized form) or with Maheshwari
Datamatics (in case of Shares held in physical form).Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules framed thereunder,
companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through clectronic
mode to those Members who have registered their e-mail address either with the
Company or with the Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in
dematerialized form arc requested to register (or update, in case of any change) their e-
mail address with their Depository Participant(s), if not already registered / updated
and Members holding shares in physical form are requested to register (or update, in
case of any change) their e-mail.

—— e —




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LTD.
706 CENTRAL PLAZA, 2/6, SARAT BOSE RCAD, KOLKATA -700020
PHONES : 033-2485 8519/8520/8524/8526, FAX. : 033-22458525
Email : info@westcopgcem | CIN UB3090WB2011PLCIGELILL:

T EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
[Explanatory Statement In Pursuant To The Provision Of Section 102 Of The Companies Act, 2013]

Item No. 3: Appointment of Ms. Rajni Mishra (DIN:07706571) as Director and also as Independent
Director of the Company.

The Company intends to underizke an initia) public offering (the “Offer™} ol its cquity shares (the “Equity
Shares”). In connection with the Offer, the Company will be required to comply with the Companies Act.
2013, and the rules thereunder, cach as amended (the “Companies Act™) and the Securitics and Exchange
Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015, as amended (the
“SEBI Listing Regulations™). Accordingly, the Board has recommended the appointinent of Ms. Rajni
Mishra as an independent director on the Board of the Company. In this cennection, the Board is of the
opinion that such person fulfills the criteria for independent directors, as sel out in the Companies Act, and
the SEBI Listing Regulations and that Ms. Rajni Mishra is independent of the management of the

Company.

Based or the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee, the Beard of Dircctors
appointed Ms. Rajni Mishra (DIN:07706571) as Additional Directer of the Company, in the recommended
category “lndependent Director”, with effect from 31st, August, 2022, As an Additional Dircctor, Ms.
RAINI MISHRA (DIN:07706571) will hold office only upto the date of this Annual General Mceting and
is eligible o be appoinied as Director. Ms. RAINI MISHRA (DIN:D7706571) has also given declaration 1o
the Board, pursuant 10 Section 149(7) of the Companics Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of SEBI (Lasting
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013, that he meets the criteria of independence as
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation [6(1) (b) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and has alse given her consent to act as
Director. $he shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or any committees
thereof, as may be determined by the Board from time to time. Her term of office will be a period of five
(5) consecutive years with ¢ffect trom 30.09.2022. She shall not be liable to determination by retirement of
directors by rotation. The profile of Ms. RAINI MISHRA(DIN:07706571) is stated as under :

A) EDUCATIONAL:
1. Associate Member of The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India having Membership No. A42928.

2. MBA in Human Resource Managemeni from W.B.U.T,
3 B Sc. from Caleutta University.

B) PROFESSIONAL:

I. Presently working as the Company Secretary of M/s. Deeplok Financial Services Ltd. from 15" March,
2021 till date.

2. She has gualified the Online Proficiency Seif Assessment Test for Independent Dircctor's Databank.

The Company has received the consent letter in the Form DIR — 2 furnished by Ms. Rajni Mishra providing
hrer conaent to aet as an imdependent director of the Company and the decluration and the undertakings in
the Form DIR — 8 furnished by Ms. Rajni Mishra confirming that she is not disqualificd under Section 164

of the Companies Act from acting as a director oflhg,gﬁm@ny.
TR R?/ ~
(?71

(\
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, the
approval of the sharcholders of the Company is required 10 appoint an independent director.

The Board recommends the resolutions set out in item no. 3 of the Notice for vour approval.

[None of the directors or managers or key managerial personnel of the Company or their respective
relatives are concerned or interested in these resolutions, except in the ordinary course of business.]

Date- 31.08.2022 By order of the Board
Place: Kolkata e For Western Carriers (India) Limited

Raj¢ndra Sethia
{(Managing Director)
DIN:00267974
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Annexure to Annual General Meeting Notice

Brief details of Directors / Managing Director eligible for appointment / re — appointment vide
item no. 2 pursuant to Secretarial Standard (55 — 2) issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India,

U—Nﬁ Kztni;i&;l-gc_ll-{ia 7

 Name of Director L Kanis ~ o
Date of Birth T 18.12.1976 B o ‘
| DIN Number 00267232 B
| Date of Appointment 3 23.03.2011 L "

Wualiﬁcations | MBA, B.SC from Bentley College, Waltham,
e Massachusetts. . N |

experience in the logisties industry spevializing in

Expertise in specific
Functional areas comples supply chain management.

i List of Companies in which outside
dircctorship held

e R

s AJKIR Infrastructure Limited;
F.¥M Carriers Private Limited;
S M P Properties Private Limited;
»  Singular Infrastructure Private Limited;
e Success Suppliers Private Limited;
*»  Weslern Apartments PPrivate Limited:
»  Woestern Conglomerate Limited:
»  Western Dry Ports Private Limited;
e Western Group Limited,;
s Western Herbicides Private Limited;
s Wescon Limited;
Western Logistics Private Limited;
Western Sparefoot Private Limited; and
e Western Ware Housing Private Limited.

* @

“Chairman/Member of the committees of NIL
the Board of other companies in which

- he/she is a Director

N |
-
N

" Details of shareholding (Both own or held 2460 shares
by/for uther persons un a beneficial basis),
if any, in the Company i
Disclosure in terms of Clause 49(1V)(G)(ia) | : N.A, B T e

of the Listing Agreement : Disclosure of
relationships between directors infer-se

-ty
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‘Annexure to Annual General Meeting Notice

Brief details of Directors / Managing Director eligible for appointment / re — appointment vide
item no. 3 pursuant to Secretarial Standard (SS — 2) issued by the Institute of Campany

Secretaries of India.

[ Name of Director

Ms. Rajni Mishra

' Date of Birth (01011987 |
I)l‘\ Number r“_'_,._ 0770657+ T T T
Vyi e . TR
Date of Appointment : 31.08.2022 - |
Qualifications | B.SC., ACS, MBA in Human Resource Management from
| |wBuUT. b
——— e - ———— —
Expertise in specific Company Sccretars of M/s. Dccplok Financial Services |
| Functional arcas |- | Ltd. from 15" March, 2021 till date
e — e N — R ,_{
xr List of Companies in which outside Impendent Directors in following: |
[ directorship held 1. Shyam Metalics And Energy Limited i
1 2. Alpine Commercial Co Lid.
— e 3. Tunkai India Limited __J

Chairman/Member of the committees

of the Board of other companies in
|« which she is a Director

LA,

1. Shyam Metalics And Ene r;,\ Limited- Nil

2. Alpine Cemmercial Co Ltd.: |
a. Audit Committee- Member
b. Nomination & Remuneration Committee- Member |
3. Tunkai India Limited:
a. Audit Committee- Chairperson
b. Nomination & Remuncration Committee- Chalrpcrs<m
c. Stakcholder Relationship Committee- Member

r Details of shareholding (Boﬂlwn uE

NIL ;
I held by/for other persons on a ]
beneficial basis), if any, in the 1' :

! Company '

- | .
; : : e — —— ——

Disclosure in terms of Clause N.A. ,

|

49(1V)(G)(ia) of the Listing
Agreement ;: Disclosure of
relationships between directors inter-
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Annexure to Annual General Meeting Notice
FORM NO. MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Section 10376 of the Companies o 2003 and
Rufe 19¢3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rufes, 2tid)

!_l\‘ame of the Member(s)

[ Registered Address

F-mail _ll)

Femmmme s

Folio No. / *DP-1D & Client

*.][J_/J-l_‘n“_(-'(l_[;';ﬁi." Investors l;r_)}ﬁmu_ .A_\:;;;U-'L;.-\'ll:” electronic form - T S
I/ We, being the member (s)yof .................... shares of the above named Company., hereby appoint:
1 . Name: N Address: T ‘
L E-mail Id: Signature: 1
Or falling him
o Name o ! Address: o .
o Emaille . Signawre o
Or failing him
[3. \ Name: Address: ) B !
i ! E-mail 1d: Signature: '

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of t

he Company, to be

held on Friday, the 30" September 2022 at 04:30 P.M. at 2/6 Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata -700020. and at any adjournment thereof in

respect of such resolations as is are indicated below:
“T EWwish iy eur above Prosy w vote in the manner as indicated in the bos belosw -

Ordinary/ Special Business:

Item No. | Resolution(s)

i For 'f\gninst

| To receive, consider and adopt: ‘
a.) The Audited Standalene Financial Statements of the Company for the financial vear ended
! March 31. 2022 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon: and
b.) e Audited Consolidated Financial Statements ol the Company for the financial yvear !
ended March 31, 2022 and the Report of Auditers thereon.
T.-ip|)0intmer;t_6_f__a_ Director in place of Mr. Kanishka Sethia (DIN: 00267232) who retires '

—_—

1
I

>
| | by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. |
3. Appointment of Ms. Rajni Mishra (DIN: 07706571) as Director and alse as Independent \
Director of the Company. . !
his .ooeennn, c£5 L o S— s P
Signed this day of 2022 ;[_Xfﬁ,\' Re.l
" Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Sharcholder Signature of Proxy holder(s): \—‘——4
./'/-"Pim
:’:’:gb @'vﬁ o
[ 2
7. e <
——q‘?:’//ﬁ\i \;\’//
RN
e
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Annexure to Annual General Meeting Notice

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Annual General Meeting, Friday, the 30th September 2022 at 04:30 P.M. at 2/6 Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata -
700020.

" Name of the Sharcholder | [
CAddress - o ‘
" Registered Folio/ DP 1D &
Client 1D i :
No of Shares held ;
rName of the Proxy /
Authorised Representative,

Cilany

I We hereby record my 7 our presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MELTING of the Company to be held on
Friday. the 30" September 2022 at 04:30 P.M, at 2/6 Sarat Bose Road, Koikata -700020.

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy/ Authorised Representative

Note:

1)The Member/Proxy must bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting, duly completed and signed. and hand over the
same at the venue enlrance.

2) Members are requested 1o bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting. since further copies will not be
available.

33 In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a volte, whether in person or by Proxy, shall be
aceepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the Register of Members.

4) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not prectude such member from attending in person and

voting al the meeting,
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Route Map for easy location of venue of the Annual General Meeting - 2/6, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata -700020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO
THE MEMBERS
WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 11"Annual Report on the business and operation of
the company and the accounts for the Financial year ended 3 1st March, 2022,

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/ PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:
The financial results for the year ended 31 March, 2022 and the corresponding figures for the
last year are as under :

Particulars Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

F.Y. 2021-2022 E.Y. 2020-2021
Profit before Tax 83,35,97,544.09 60,01,38,618.16
Provision for taxation 22,23,75,707.00 15,50,06,915.00
Profit after Tax 61,12,21,837.09 44,51,31,703.16
Balance brought forward from previous year 1,57,18,64,454.23 | 1,12,67,32,751.07
Proposed Dividend on Preference Share - 15,00,000
Tax on Dividend - -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 2,03,30,86,291.32 | 1,57,18,64,454.23

2. DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 20* May 2022 had declared the Interim Dividend
of Rs.2.50 per Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each for the financial year 2021-22. The total dividend
payout was Rs. 9,83,74,250 against holding of 3,93,49,700 Equity Shares by the shareholders of
the Company. No further dividend was recommended by the board , the Board has considered
the said interim dividend as final Dividend for the period under review.

3. REDEMPTION OF 15000000 1% REDEEMABLE NON- CUMULATIVE PREFERENCE

SHARES:

In view of Investors option for early redemption of preference shares before maturity date, and
considering the Company has available profits, during the year the company has redeemed
15000000 1% Redeemable Non- cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, out of available
surplus fund of the Company. Accordingly, pursuant to section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 an
amount equal to the redemption value of Rs. 150000000 transferred to Capital Redemption
Reserve Account.

4. EXTINGUISHMENT OF PREFERENCE SHARES BY CDSL:
After redemption the Company has taken Corporate Action for cancellation of 15000000 1%
Redeemable Non- cumulative Preference Shares held in dematerialized form, accordingly the
CDSL has confirmed for extinguishment of aforesaid preference shares from their record.

5. RESERVE & SURPLUS :
The Company has transferred Rs. 150000000 to Capital Redemption Reserve Account out of the
current year profit, the balance amount of profit retained in surplus of Profit & Loss Account.
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10.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS :

The working of the company during the year under review was satisfactory as compared to
previous year. The company has earned profit before tax of Rs.83.36 Cr as against previous year
of Rs.60.00 Cr. Profit after tax has increased from Rs. 44.51 Cr. to Rs. 61.12Cr. primarily due to
substantial increase in Turnover. The management hopes to achieve further better results in next
financial year.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:

Pursuant to the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, and as per Rule
9A further issue of securities in dematerialized form by unlisted company as such the company
has applied to CDSL and NSDL for admission of its shares (Equity Share and Preference Share)
in dematerialized form. The CDSL and NSDL has processed the application and admitted the
securities of the company for dematerialization. Henceforth the members of the company may
convert their physical shares in electronic form.

The ISIN for Equity Shares is: INEOCJF01016

However, in view of the redemption of the preference shares in full, the ISIN being
INEOCJF04010 for Preference Shares has been cancelled.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS :
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company carried during the year.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the ends of the financial year to which these financial statements relates and the date of
this report.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS :
During the year Twelve Board Meetings were convened and held as per details given below :

S.NO. | DATE OF | TOTAL NO OF DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE
MEETING |AS ON THE DATE OF
MEETING Numbers of as % age of total
directors attended | directors
1 04/05/2021 5 5 100
2 25/06/2021 5 5 100
3 27/07/2021 5 4 80
4 27/08/2021 5 5 100
5 14/09/2021 5 3 100
6 28/10/2021 5 4 80
7 03/11/2021 5 5 100
8 05/11/2021 5 5 100
9 24/01/2022 5 5 100
10 10/02/2022 5 5 100
11 07/03/2022 5 5 100
12 18/03/2022 5 5 100
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11.

12.

13.

The maximum interval between any two Board Meetings did not exceed 120 (One hundred and
twenty) days. The details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings are as follows:

SL | Name of the Director Board Meetings
No. No. of meetings held | No. of meetings attended
1 RAJENDRA SETHIA 12 12
2 KANISHKA SETHIA 12 12
3 SUSHILA SETHIA 12 12
4 BIPRADAS BHATTACHARJEE 12 12
5 SUNIL MUNSHI 12 10

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Mr. Kanishka Sethia (DIN: 00267232) shall retire by rotation in the Annual General Meeting
being eligible offer himself for reappointment.

Mr. Rajendra Sethia, Managing Director who is also holding the post as Chief Financial Officer
has resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer with effect from 24% June, 2022.

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Mantri was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company by the Board
on 24th June, 2022.

Pursuant to Sec. 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Rajni Mishra was appointed as Additional
Director by the Board in the meeting held on date upto the date of forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The Board recommends her reappointment with the designation of Independent Director
subject to the approval in ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Ms. Sapna Kochar who was appointed as Company Secretary with effect from 24th, December,
2020, also designated as Compliance Officer with effect from 31st, August, 2022.

COMPLAINCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Board confirms that it has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India to the extent applicable to the Company.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON
ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR Committee was formed and
the Committee is consisting of three Directors out of which two Directors are independent
Director. Since the Company has earned more than 5 Crores profit during the financial year 2020-
21, the Committee has taken appropriate steps for contribution in Corporate Social Responsibility
activities as per policy prepared for same. As per provisions of the CSR rules, the contribution
which was required to be spent envisaged in the enclosed statement as per Annexure “A”.

During the year two meeting of the CSR Committee were convened and held as per details given
below:

S.NO. | DATE OF | TOTAL NO OF MEMBERS ATTENDANCE
MEETING AS ON THE DATE OF | Numbers of as % age of total
MEETING members members
attended
1 03/11/2021 3 3 100
2 18/03/2022 3 3 100
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14.

15.

16.

17.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

During the year, no Risk Management Committee was constituted by the Board to review the
company’s risk management plan. However the Company has adequately covered risk by
adopting various insurance policies. The Board further reviewed the risk factor from time to time.

SUBSIDIARY, JOINTVENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

Pursuant to Sec.2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 by virtue of holding more than 50% of shares,
the company has one Subsidiary Company the details of the same are annexed as per prescribed
form AOC-1 marked as Annexure “B”.

Pursuant to Sec.2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 by virtue of holding more than 20% of shares,
the company has three Associates Companies, the details of the same are annexed as per
prescribed form AOC-1 marked as Annexure “B”

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:
No significant and material orders passed by the regulators or court or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operation in future.

CHANGES IN SHARES CAPITAL:
The Company has not issued any Equity Shares/ or other Securities during the year under review.
However, due to redemption of preference shares changes occurred in the total paid up share

capital of the company.

18. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIY:

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

In view of proposed listing the Company has voluntarily changed its accounting policy from
IGAAP to IND AS, for the financials and conducting the audit in view of the same.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s Jai Pandya and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Membership No.316071E) was appointed
as Statutory auditor of the company for a period of 4 years, commencing from 01.04.2019 to
31.03.2023 in the last Annual General Meeting held on 30th, September, 2019 The first proviso to
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provided for the ratification of appointment of the
Statutory Auditors by the Members at every Annual General Meeting has been omitted by the
Companies Amendment Act 2017 w.e.f. 7th, May 2018. Hence, the appointment of Statutory
Auditors shall continue to be valid till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held
for the financial year 2023. Accordingly, no resolution for appointment of Statutory Auditor is
required at this ensuing AGM.

AUDITORS' REPORT:
The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The MCA vide the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2021 dated,
March, 05, 2021, substituted Rule 12 of the rules, the Extract of the Annual Return in the
FormMGT-9 is no more required to be attached. However, copy of annual return will be uploaded
in the website of the company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SEC 186 :

The Company has not given any loan or provided any guarantee during the year, however
[nvestment made during the year and aggregate of total earlier loan given and investment made
are within the prescribed limit w's 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DEPOSIT:

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.
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24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:
The Company has not entered into any contract ws 188 of the Companies Act,2013. However, the
Company has entered a few transaction which are at arm length basis and not considered as
material transaction, hence, Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
ATWORKPLACEPREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act,2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,
trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company did not receive any complain during the

year 2021-22.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

Since the Company is not carrying on any manufacturing activity, the provisions relating to
conservation of energy & technology absorption are not applicable to the Company.

Foreign Exchange Earning - Rs. NIL (Previous Year NIL)
Foreign Exchange Outgo - Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL)

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:
There is no unpaid/unclaimed dividend lying with the company since its incorporation.

DIRECTORS'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
The Directors' Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of Sub- section (3) of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013 shall state that

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures:

b. The director had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss
of the company for that period;

c. the director had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

£ the directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.
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29.

30.

31.

32.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:

As per the provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, a committee was constituted of 3 members of Board i.e. Mr. Bipradas Bhattacharjee
and Mr. Sunil Munshi, Independent Director and Mr. Rajendra Sethia, Director of the Company.
During the year two meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were convened and
held as per details given below :

S.NO. | DATE OF | TOTAL NO OF MEMBERS ATTENDANCE
MEETING | AS ON THE DATE OF | Numbers of as % age of
MEETING members total members
attended
| 05/11/2021 3 3 100
2 24/01/2022 3 3 19

REMUNERATION TO MANAGERIAL PERSONAL:

The remuneration paid to Managing Director and Whole time Directors or any other employee is
less than 1.02 Cr P.A. during the year. Therefore, the provisions for disclosure under Rule 5 Sub
Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Rule 2014, is
not applicable to the Company. The company is unlisted public company, separate disclosure
under rule 5 is not applicable.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

The company has obtained Secretarial Audit Report from Mr. Rohit Singhi, Practicing Company
Secretary U/S 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the report does not contain any qualification. The
report in the prescribed form MR-3 is enclosed herewith marked as Annexure “C”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted Audit Committee pursuant to Sec.177 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The members of the committee are Mr. Bipradas Bhattacharjee and Mr. Sunil Munshi,
Independent Director and Mr. Kanishka Sethia, Director of the Company. The attendance of
members of committee is given below :

S.NO. | DATE OF | TOTAL NO OF MEMBERS ATTENDANCE
MEETING AS ON THE DATE OF
MEETING Numbers of as % age of
members total members
attended
1 04/05/2021 3 3 100
2 27/07/2021 3 3 100
3| 03/11/2021 3 3 100
4 05/11/2021 3 3 100
5 24/01/2022 3 3 100
6 18/03/2022 3 3 100
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33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
extended by Bank, employees, its Investors and all other associates and look forward to continue
fruitful association with all business partners of the company.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board

2/6 Sarat Bose Road For Western Carriers (India) Limited

Room No.206

Kolkata — 700 020

Dated: August 31, 2022 jendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Place: Kolkata anaging Director Whole time Director

DIN:00267974 DIN:00267232
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Annexure — “A”

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY:

last three financial Years i.e for 201 8-19,
2019-20, 2020-2021(Amount in Rs.
Millions)

FI No| Particulars Details
1. | A brief outline of the Company’s policy | At Western Carriers (India) Ltd, we are committed to
including overview of projects or | economic, social and cultural growth of the underprivileged
programs proposed to be undertaken and | in an equitable and sustainable manner in the peripheral
a reference to the CSR policy and | areas around its branch offices, sites and corporate office.
projects. Arising from this the focus areas that have emerged are
Education, Health and sanitation, livelihood enhancement
projects, and promotion of art, culture and heritage,
To attain our objective, vision and mission our approach will
be that CSR activities are being undertaken by the business
in multiple ways-independently, jointly with Trusts/
Societies, partnership with an external social body/NGO.
2. | The Composition of the CSR Committee
S| Nameof | Designation /| Number of Number
No| Director/ meetings of of
: Nature of CSR meetings
Directorship Committee | of CSR
held during|Committe
the year e
attended
during the,
year
1 |Rajendra 2 2
Sethia Chairman of
(Managing the CSR
Director) Committee
2 |Bipradas 2 2
Bhattacharjee| Member of
(Independent | the CSR
Director) Committee
3 [Sunil Munshi | Member of 2 2
(Independent | the CSR
u Director) Committee
3. | Average net profit of the company for Calculation as per Section 135 (5) of the Companies Act,

2013 are as under:

Net Profit for the year 2018-19 Rs. 328.24

Net Profit for the year 2019-20 Rs. 532.51

Net Profit for the year 2020-21 Rs. 584.76
Total Rs. 1445.51

Average net profit for last 3 years Rs. 481.84

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent
of the amount as in item 3 above)
(Amount in Rs. Millions)

Rs. 9.64 (2% of average net profit)
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year

5. | Details of CSR spent during the financial

As per the table enclosed below.

6. | Total amount spent in the F.Y. 2021-
2022 (including Rs. 11.55 Carried
Forward unspent amount) (Amount in
Rs. Millions)

Rs.11.58

7. | Amount unspent, if any; (as per details
of carried forward CSR obligation)

Rs.9.61

8 | Manner in which the amount spent
during the financial year. (including
Carried Forward unspent amount)

As per the table enclosed below.

Details of CSR Expenditure for the financial vear ended 31% March, 2022:

1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) () (8) (9)
5 | CSR project | Sector in | Projects/pr | Amt. Amt spent | Cumul | Mode | Mode of Implementation -
No. | or activity which ograms (1) | outlay on the ative of Through Implementing
identified the local area (budget) | projects expen | Imple | Agency
project is| or other (2) | project or or diture | menta
covered | specify the | program | programs | upto tion -
state and wise (Rs. | Sub-heads | the Direct
district in (1) Direct | reportt | (Yes | o™ gg;straﬁon
where Millions) | expenditur| ng 0). number.
project or eon period
programs projects or
was programs
undertaken 2)
Overhead
1. | Promotion of | Various 5.00 NO Sansthanam | CSR00001492
Health CSR Abhay
care/sanitatio | Activities Daanam
n,
Sustainable
Livelihood
2. | Promotion of | Support | Bhilwara, 6.58 NO Jan Jagrati | CSR00006903
Girl child Education| Rajasthan Sevarth
Education and| For Sansthan
education for | Children
underprivilege
d sections of
society
Total 11.58
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Details of carried forward CSR obligation:
(Amount in Rs. Millions)

Opening unspent amount of CSR contribution brought forward Rs. 11.55
Add: For the F.Y 2021-22Prescribed CSR Expenditure

i.e. 2% of Net Profit Rs. 9.64
Total amount due for spent upto 31.3.2022 Rs. 21.19
Less: Amount spent during the year (Rs. 11.5%)
Amount due for spent and carried forward as on 01.04.2022 Rs. 9.61

** Details of the amount spent out of the due unspent CSR obligation of Rs. 9.61
during the reporting period i.e. after the end of financial year 2021-2022 to the date
of signing of this report (from 01.04.2022 to 31.08.2022) is Rs. 1.50 million, through
CSR registered Implementing Agency.

Further pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Rule every
Company covered under the provision of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
shall furnish a report on its Corporate Social Responsibility in the form CSR -2 to
the Registrar of Companies for the preceding financial year 2020-2021 accordingly
the Company has filed Form No.CSR-2 with MCA for the Financial Year 2020-21.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
2/6 Sarat Bose Road For Western Carriers (India) Limited
Room No.206

Kolkata — 700 020 -
._,:rﬂ"'—-—""'””—' & ": Q.c...z.:‘_

Dated: August 31, 2022 Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Whole time Director
-‘ DIN:00267974 DIN: 00267232
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Annuxure “B*

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules,2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate
companies or joint ventures

Part A Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

1.
2.

7

10.
11.
12.
13.
14,
15
16.

SL.No. 1
Name of the subsidiary: Western Skyvilla Private Limited
The date since when subsidiary was acquired: 14/03/2020

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s
reporting period — NA

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the
case of foreign subsidiaries - NA

Share capital- Rs. 1,22,00,000
Reserves and surplus- (Rs.2,36,100)
Total assets- Rs. 7,18,79,020

Total Liabilities- Rs. 7,18,79,020
Investments- NIL

Turnover- Rs, 2,91,300 (other income)
Profit before taxation- Rs. 9805
Provision for taxation- NIL

Profit after taxation- Rs. 9805
Proposed Dividend- NIL

Extent of shareholding (in percentage)- 82.79%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1.
2

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations- NIL
Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NIL
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Annexure “B”

Part B Associates

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end

of Rs. 10/- each

of Rs.100/- each

Name of Associates or Joint SUCCESS SMP F.M CARRIERS

Ventures SUPPLIERS PVT PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED
LTD. PVT. LTD.

1. Latest audited Balance 31.03.2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2022

Sheet Date

2.Shares of Associate or 1700000 Equity Share | 1515 Equity Share 45835 Equity Share of

Rs. 10/- each

3.Amount of Investment in
Associates or Joint Venture

Rs. 1,70,00,000/-

Rs. 48,24,111/-

Rs.11000400/-

significant influence

influence due to %

significant

4.Extent of Holding (in 33.33% 22.97% 31.43%
percentage)
5.Description of how there is | There is significant | There is There is significant

influence due to %

associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

age of Share influence due to age of Share
Holding % age of Share Holding
Holding
6.Reason why the N.A N.A N.A

7. Net worth attributable to
shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

Rs. 1,26,36,650/-

(Rs. 28,345/-)

Rs. 73,63,046/-

Consolidation

8. Profit or Loss for the year | Rs. 1,95,620/- Rs. 6,250/- Rs. 21,230/-
i. Considered in Rs. 65,200/~ Rs. 1,435/- Rs. 128/-
Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Rs. 1,30,420/- Rs. 4,815/- Rs. 21,102/-

Place : Kolkata
Date : August 31,2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Western Carriers (India) Limited

"

é;-‘-‘-“—

Kanishka Sethia
Whole time Director
DIN:00267232

————

R4jendra Sethia
Managing Director
DIN:00267974
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FORM NO. MR- 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Western Carriers (India) Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Western Carriers (India) Limited
(hereinafter called “The Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended
on 315 March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed here-under and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Western Carriers (India) Limited (“The Company”) for the period ended 31
March, 2021 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA?) and the Rules made thereunder;
(iiiy The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder

{o the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; S\ G4

A F \
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act?) viz: -

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period).

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii) The Provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Regulations etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Dircctors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Z\NG
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Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no
instance of recording any dissenting member’s view in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there are no specific events/actions which have
any major bearing on the Company’s affairs. '

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-1” which
forms an integral part of this Secretarial Audit Report.

For Rohit Singhi & Co.
Company Secretary

Rolt St

Place: Kolkata Rohit Singhi
Date: 31% August, 2022 Proprietor
ACS No. - 43484
CP. No. 16021

UDIN: A043484D001078474

For Rohit Singhi & Co.

(Company Secretary)
Cop No. 16021

ot Siuglad

(C S Rohit Singhi)
Proprietor

Membership No. 43484
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“ANNEXURE-1"
To,
The Members,

Western Carriers (India) Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretariat records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to eXpress an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit,

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretariat records. The verification
was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Rohit Singhi & Co.
Company Secretary

Lobut Sl
Place: Kolkata Rohit Singhi
Date: 31* August, 2022 Proprietor
ACS No. - 43484
CP. No, 16021

UDIN: A043484D001078474 For Rohit Singhi & Co.

. (Company Secretary)
Cop No. 16021

folmit Siwlar
(C S Rohit Singhi)

. Proprietor
Membership No. 43484



JAI PANDYA AND ASSOCIATES 36, Strand Road,
Chartered Accountants 3rd Floor, Room No. 25
Kolkata — 700 001
Phone: 033-22425985
E-mail: cajkpandya@hotmail.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Western Carriers (India) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Western
Carriers (India) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance
sheet as at March 31 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow and the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

5. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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6. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.
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10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

13. The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31,2021 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2020 included in these
standalone financial statements (prepared in accordance with Ind AS) are based on
the previously issued statutory financial statements for the years ended March 31,

2021 and March 31, 2020 prepared in accordance with the Co

ies (Accounting
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Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended), which were audited by us, on which we
expressed an unmodified opinion dated November 03, 2021, and October 29, 2020
respectively. The adjustments to these standalone financial statements (prepared in
accordance with Ind AS) for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the
Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

()

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

(c)

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone
Statement Cash Flows and Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the

(e)

(g)

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022
has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on March 31,
2022 on its standalone financial statements- refer not 32 to the standalone
financial statements.

e
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ii.

iv.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person or
entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

p— "_'7'-."_"%‘..__:::‘

J'K-PW

J.K. Pandya

(Partner)

Membership Number: 052678

Kolkata, August 31, 2022
UDIN: 22052678AQLPFZ8849
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Refer to the paragraph 15(f) of the independent auditor’s report of event date to the
members of Western Carriers (India) Limited on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls related to Standalone Financial
Statement under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of Western Carriers (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
standalone financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAIL

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

J.K. Pandya
(Partner)
Membership Number: 052678

Kolkata, August 31, 2022
UDIN: 22052678AQLPFZ8849




JAI PANDYA AND ASSOCIATES 36, Strand Road,
Chartered Accountants _ 3rd Floor, Room No. 25

Kolkata — 700 001
Phone: 033-22425985
E-mail: cajkpandya@hotmail.com

Annexure B to independent Auditor’s Report:

Refer to the paragraph 14 of the independent auditor’s report of event date to the members of Western
Carriers (India) Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

i

(2)

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

The Company has physically verified the Property, Plant and Equipment during
the current year in accordance with a phased programme designed to cover all the
items over a period of three years which is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the
Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

The title deed of all immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee), as specified in note 4 to the standalone financial statements, are held in the

name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022,
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and,
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us, records of the Company
examined by us and as disclosed in note 19 to the standalone financial statements,
the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rupees five
Crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current
assets of the Company.

Based on the examination of records of the Company, in our opinion, there was no
material difference between the amount of trade receivables (billed) reported to the
banks, except for the quarter ended March31, 2022 whereby the reported amount of
trade receivables (billed) were lower by Rs. 264.80 millions.
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1ii. According to the information and explanation given to us and the record of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security
or granted any secured loans or secured or unsecured advances in the nature of
loans, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during
the year. During the year the Company has made investments in one company and
grated unsecured loans to two companies, in respect of which the requisite
information is as below. During the year the Company has not made any investments
or granted loans to firms, limited liabilities partnerships or any other parties.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the
audit procedure performed by us, the Company has provided the loans it
subsidiary as below:

¢ Loans
Particulars (Rs. In Millions)
| Aggregate amount of loans granted during the year
Subsidiary 6.62
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Subsidiary 6.85

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and record of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the investment made and term and
conditions of aforesaid loan granted during the year, prima facie, are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company has not provided any
guarantee or security or granted any advance in the nature of loans during the
year.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and record of the
Company examined by us, in the respect of loans granted, repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the receipt have been
regular.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and record of the
Company examined by us, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety
days in the respect of loans given.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and record of the
Company examined by us, there were no loans granted to companies which has
fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties.

() According to the information and explanation given to us and record of the
Company examined by us, as disclosed in note 16 to the standalone financial
statements, during the year, the Company has granted loans repayable on
demand to its subsidiary and other body corporates. Of these following are the
details of the aggregate amount of loans to related parties as defined in clause
(76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013:




iv.

vil.

Viii.
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Particulars

Amount of loan outstanding in respect to loans granted
during the year 6.94
Percentage to the total loans granted during the year 100%

According to the information and explanation given to us and record of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans
and investment made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted
any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, to the extent
applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us and the record of the Company
examined by us, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost
records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it with appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty,
excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company. e———
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(2)

(b)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has made no defaults in repayment of dues
to banks during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures performed, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, Term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have been informed of any such case by the
Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to information and explanations given to us, no report under section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 has been filed with the Central
Government during the year. -
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xi. (c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii. (a) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. Transactions entered with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013.The details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
notes to the standalone financial statements, as required by the Ind AS 24 “Related
Party Disclosures” specified under section 133 of the Act.

xiv. According to information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

xiv. (b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report,
for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV, The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under the provisions of section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

xvi. (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XVil. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year orin the
immediately preceding financial year.

Xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

XiX. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 43 to the standalone financial

statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
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based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

xx. (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent
amount to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act),
within a period of six months from end of the financial year in compliance with the
second proviso to sub section (5) of section 135 the Act, except in respect of the

following:
Financial year Amount unspent Amount Amount
on corporate social transferred to transferred after
responsibility Fund specified in due date
activities for other Schedule VII
than ongoing within six months
projects end of the
financial year
2020-21 11.55 o* 0*
2021-22 9.55 O# O#

*The entire unspent amount of Rs 11.55 million has been spent by the Company by
the end of March 31, 2022.

# The due date for transferring the unspent amount is September 30, 2022, by which
date the Company expects to either spent or transfer the amount by that date.

xx. (b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to
be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of
section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 40 to the
standalone financial statements.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

ﬁ tK*f 5

J.K. Pandya
(Partner)
Membership Number: 052678

— v T B

Kolkata, August 31, 2022
UDIN: 22052678AQLPFZ8849




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(1) Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work in progress
(c) Right of use assets
(d) Goodwill
(e} Other Intangible assets
(f) Investments in subsidiaries and associates
(g) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Other financial assets
(h) Deferred tax assets (Net)
(i) Other non-current assets
(j) Income-tax Assets (Net)
Total Non-current assets
(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other bank balances
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
(b) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total Assets
() Equity and Liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Total equity
{2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Long-term provisions
Total Non-current liabilities
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(i) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b} Short-term provisions
(c) Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number | 316071E

g" K. Pﬂnxd/&ﬁ
JK. PANDYA
Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

4 383.41 362.60 362.11

4 23.63 6.20 -
5 741 52.88 56,87
6 310.00 310.00 310.00
6 1.45 1.68 1.23
7 42,92 31.92 31,92
8 7.47 7.47 747
] 256.91 273.92 31691
10 27.06 25.21 23.84

1 5.00 - -
12 49.56 17.01 27.97
1,124.82 1,088.87 1,137.32
13 3,113.89 2,523.52 1,865.54
14 2474 33.94 61.21
15 107.25 7475 31.97
16 170.34 280.67 348.38
9 55.84 51.79 42,83
1 252.22 194,72 98.97
3,724.28 3,159.39 2,446.70
4,849,10 4,248.26 3,584.02
17 393.50 393.50 393.50
18 2,181.19 1,571.91 1,125.94
2,574.69 1,965.41 1,519.44
19 170.55 352.49 212.45
5 25.88 40.25 48,368
20 - - 45,23
21 22.04 14.67 11.91
218.47 407.41 315.95
19 1,280.39 1,001.51 748.45
5 15.24 15.10 10.51

22
649.50 779.31 917 .54
20 61.01 39.47 26.40
21 2.68 2.27 267
23 47.12 37.78 43.06
2,055.94 1,875.44 1,748.63
4,849.10 4,248.26 3,584.02
1-48
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
L4
ajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia

@16' ua M’I w7
inesh Mantri

Chief Financial Officer

Whole time Director

DIN: 325?232

Sapna Kochar
Company Secretary
Membership Number: AS6298

naging Director
DIN: 00267974




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(1
(2)
()

(@)

(5)
(6)

()
(8)

(9) Total comprehensive income for the year (7 + 8)
(10) Earnings per equity share (Face value of share of Rs. 10 each)

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income (1) + (2)

Expenses
(a) Operational expenses
(b) Employee benefits expense
(c) Finance costs
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense
(e) Other expenses
Total Expenses (4)
Profit before tax (3) - (4)
Tax Expense
(a) Current tax
(i) Current tax for current year
(ii) Current tax for the earlier years
(b) Deferred tax
(i) Deferred tax for current year
Total tax expense (6)
Profit for the year (5) - (6)
Other comprehensive income

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of the employees defined benefit plans

(i) Income tax relating to above items
Total other comprehensive income (8)

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notes For the year ended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
24 14,708.75 11,101.12
25 49.10 37.76
14,757.85 11,138.88
26 12,804.09 9,607.17
27 370.37 277.14
28 139.20 120.97
29 116.00 115.92
30 494.60 408.54
13,924.26 10,538.74
833.59 600.14
10
223.58 154.18
- 2.48
10
(1.20) (1.65)
222.38 155.01
611.21 445.13
(2.58) 1.12
0.65 (0.28)
(1.83) 0.84
609.28 445.97
3
15.53 11.31
15.53 11.31

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 1-49

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For JAl PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 316071E

J.K. PANDYA
Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra Sethia
Managing Director
DIN: 00267974

7 C 3?
7 ”Malﬂih

Dinesh Mantri
Chief Financial Officer

N Stacy.

Kanishka Sethia
Whole time Director
DIN: 00267232

; t Sapna Kochar

Company Secretary

Membership Number: A56298




-~ WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for year ended March 31, 2022

(A) Cash flows from operating activities :

Net Profit before taxes
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance cosls
Loss on sale of assets
Loss on redemption of preference shares
Allowance for doubtful debts
Interest Income

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current financial assels
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current financial assets
(increase)/Decrease in Other current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Other non-current financial liabilities
Increase/{Decrease) in long-term provisions
Increase/{Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in short-term provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Direct Taxes paid

Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities

(B

Cash flows from investing activities :
Fayments for acquisition of Property, plant and equipments
Payments for acquisition of Intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipments
Loans given / repaid (net)
Interest Received
Acquisition of investment in associate
Term deposits (placed) / matured (net)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) investing activities

C

Cash flows from financing activities :
Proceeds from Long-term borrowings
Repayment of Long-term borrowings
Repayment of preference shares
Proceeds from / (repayment) of short-term borrowings
Principal lease payments
Interest paid on lease obligations
Payment of interest on Preference Shares
Other interest payments
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and Cash equivalents

Particulars

Cash in hand
Balances with bank in current accounts
Total

Notes:

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

833.59 600.14
116.00 115.92
138.20 120.97
- 0.19
23.49 -
1.07 0.90
(35.33) (23.64)
1,078.02 B23.48
0.03 -
(591.44) (658.88)
(4.05) (9.18)
(57.50) (97.75)
- (49.75)
479 3.88
(128.81) (138.23)
(2.09) 13.07
0.41 (D.40)
8.34 (5.28)]
307.70 (119.02)
(256.13) (145.70)
51.57 (264.72)
(98.76) (109.87)
{0.30) (0.88)
- 0.50
110.33 67.71
35.33 2364
(11.00) -
(15.52) (0.79)]
20.08 (19.69)
35.50 234.37
(102.06) (B0.37)
(150.00) 2
280.08 229.48
(15.10) (10.51)
(4.73) (5.32)
(1.50) (1.50)
(123.04) (109.01)
(80.85) 257.14
(9.20) (27.27)
33.94 61.21
24.74 33.94
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
571 T.47
19.03 26.47
24,74 33.94

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method which prescribed under Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows.

Refer to note 36 for disclosure related to paragraph 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of cash flows under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

{as amended).
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows referred lo in our report of even dale

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E

gsK.Pw

J.K. PANDYA

Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022

= vl
d Acc ounts

Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e i é S«

Kanishka Sethia
Whole time Director

Sapna Kochar
Company Secretary

Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

. Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
-

a. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at April 1, 2020

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2022

b. Other Equity

Balance as at April 1, 2020

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Transfer to capital redemption reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2022

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For JA| PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 3168071E

S

J.K. PANDYA

Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022

Notes Amount|
17 393.50
17 393.50
17 393.50
Reserves & Surplus
FvOCI
Notes | Retained Capital Remeasurment Equity Total
Bariiios Redemption | ofemployee ||nstruments
9 Reserve |defined benefits
1,126.73 - (0.47) {0.32) 1,125.94
18 44513 - - - 44513
18 - - 0.84 - 0.84
1,571.86 - 0.37 (0.32) 1,571.91
611.21 - - - 611.21
. . (1.93) - (1.93)
18 (150.00) 150.00 - - -
2,033.07 150.00 (1.56) (0.32) 2,181.19
1-49
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
-
s B
..-—-p;"-"-_- i
jendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
naging Director Whole time Director
IN: 00267974 DiN: 00267232
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Dinesh Mantri

Chief Financial Officer

Shelade

Sapna Kochar
Company Secretary

Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Standal Fir ial Stat t
{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

1

21

22

23

24

25

General Information
Westem Carriers (India) Limited (the Company) having CIN: U63090WB2011PLC161111 is a public limited company. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in
India under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is located at 206, Central Plaza, 2/6, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata,

West Bengal-700020,

The Company s a major player in the Indian logistics industry and engaged in providing freight and other transportation services, warehousing contracts ranging from a
few months 1o a few years. Certain accessorial services are also being provided to ils customers under their transpertation contracts, such as unloading and other
incidental services.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance
The standalone fi ial stat ts comply with all material aspect of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the

Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rule, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements upto the year ended March 31, 2021 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards nofified under Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rule, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These jalone financial st its are the first financial stat ts for the Company under the Ind AS. Refer Note 46 for an explanation on the transition from the
previous GAAP to Ind AS and its effect on the Company's financial positions, financial performance and cash flows.

Functional and presentation currency
These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's funclional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the

nearest Millions upto two decimals, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the hislorical cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured al fair values.

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associaled assumplions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered lo be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimales are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affs i

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause material adjusiment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are provided below:

(a} Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — useful lives
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after
determining an estimate of an asset's expecled useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the
Company's assets are determined by the Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at the end of each reporting period. The
lives are based on historical experience with similar assets.

(b) Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
king various plions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate; fulure salary increases and
morality rates. Due lo the complexities involved in the valuation and ils long-term nature, a defined benefil obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed al each reporting date.
(c) Lease classification, termination and renewal option of leases

Ind AS 1186, Leases requires lessees to delermine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease,
if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an it on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that the Company will continue the lease beyond non-cancellable period and whether any options lo extend or terminate the contract
will be exercised. In evalualing the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehald improvements undertaken over the lease term,
costs relating to the terminating the lease and the importance of the underlying assel to Company’s operations taking in to account the location of the underlying
asset and the availability of suitable allernatives. The lease term in fulure periods is reassessed to ensure thal the lease term reflects the cument economic
circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no material changes are required to lease period relating
to the exisling lease contracts.

(d) Impairment of Goodwill
The Company estimales the value in use of the cash generating unil (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering current economic conditions and trends,
estimated future operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatery conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using
internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Refer Note 6 for additional details.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disc es require the W of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control fi rk with respect lo the measurement of fair values. The Company reguiarly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjusiments. If third party information is used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data (uncbservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an
asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair vaiue
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises transfer bef levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

[Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
3 Significant accounting policies

3.1 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assels and liabilities in the standalone balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An assel is classified current when it is:
(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
(b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
{c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified current when:
(&) Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
(b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
(c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assels and liabilities are always classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

3.2 Financial instruments
{a) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securilies issued are initially recognised when they are criginated. All other financial assets and financial liabiliies are initially recognised
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaclion costs thal are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or Falir value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI')

Financial assets are nol reclassified subsequent lo their initial recognition, except if and In the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and s not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is lo hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates lto cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI) if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contraclual cash flows and cash flows from sales; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
oulstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Company may imevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismalch that would otherwise arise.

Equity instruments are always classified fair value through profit and loss, except in cases where the Company has elected an irrevocable option of designating the
same as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial ts: Sub t ment and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL :
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost:
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effeclive Inlerest method. The amorised cost IS reduced by Impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI :
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income i.e., subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is recognised in
other comprehensive income. Any dividend received on such instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent t and gains and losses
Financial llabilities are classified and measured at amoriised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, oritis a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense

and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition |s also recognised in profit or joss,




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

3.3

34

(e] Derecoanition
Financial assets:
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the. contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it ransfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial assel.
If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards

of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are nol derecognised.

Financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case,
a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the fi ial liability extinguished and

the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Impairment of financial assets
Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For financial assets (apart from trade receivables that do not constitule of financing transaction) whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial
recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit |osses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if
the credit risk of the financial asset has significantly increased since initial recognition.

(e) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net L pr ted in the bal sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and seltle the liability simultaneously.

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services, Such revenue is recognised upon the Company's performance of its contractual obligations and on

satisfying all the following conditions:

(1) Parties to the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform their respective obligations;

(2) Such contract has specified the respective rights and obligations of the pariies in connection with the transfer of goods or rendering of services (hereinafter the
“Transfer”);

(3) Such contract contains specific payment terms in relation lo the Transfer;

(4) Such contract has a commercial nature, namely, it will change the risk, time distribution or amount of the Company’s future cash flow;

(5) The Company is likely to the consideration it is enlitled to for the Transfer to customers.

asr is exclusive of all indirect

Rewvenue is recognised when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration. The amount
taxes and net of returns and discounts.

(a) Rendering of services

The Company generales revenue from services lo ils customers such as providing freight and other lransportatlun services, warehousing contracts ranging from a
few months to a few years, Cerain accessorial services may be provided to customers under their transp ts, such as unl g and other incidental
services. The Company's performance obligations are satisfied over time as customers simultaneously receive and consume the henerﬂs of the Company's
services. The conlracls contain a single performance obligation, as the distinct services provided remain substantially the same over time and possess the same
pattern of transfer. The transaction price is based on the consideration specified in the contract with the cust and contains fixed and variable consideration. In
general, the fixed compenent of a contract represents amounts for facility and equipment costs incurred to salisfy the performance obligation and is recognized over
the term of the contract.

In the case of transporiation services, performance obligation is created when a under a transportation contract submits a shipment note for the transport
of goods from origin to destination, These performance obligations are satisfied over the period as the shipments move from origin to destination and revenue is
recognized proportionally as a shipment moves and the related costs are recognized as incurred. Performance obligations are short-term, with transit days less than
one week. Generally, customers are billed upon completion of shipment, and remit payment accerding to approved payment terms. The Company recognizes
revenue on a net basis when the Company does not control the specific services.

(b) Contract balances
Contract assots
A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue eamed from inspection services because the receipl of consideralion is condilional on successful completion of
the inspection. Upon completion of the inspection, the amount recognised as contract assels is reclassified to trade receivables.
Trade receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional is due from the customer (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of
the consideration is due), Refer to accounting policies for financial assets for initial and subsequent measurements.
Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services lo
the customer).

Government grants

Go it grants are gnised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant

relates to an expense item, It is recognised as income on a systemalic basis over the periods that the relaled cosls, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the granl relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.
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Income Taxes
Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to

compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company or companies within the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profil or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to siluations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on porary diffi b 1 the lax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes al the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised {o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the cary forward of unused tax
credits and unused lax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufiicient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporling date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecled to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) thal have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in comelation 1o the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred lax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies
Items included in the financial stal s are m 1 using the y of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’).

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Ti ti and bal
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company in its functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spoet rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monelary items are recognised in profit or loss unless they relates to the qualifying cash flow hedges.

Nen-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

In determining the spot exchange rale to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non y liability g to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple nis or receipts in ad . the Company determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Construction in progress is stated af cost,

net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of Property, plant and equipment includes the costs directly attributable lo the acquisition or constructions of assets, or replacing paris of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced al intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a sep assel, as approp only when il is probable that fulure economic benefits
associated with them will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

Depreciation is provided on written down value method in the manner and on the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation
on addition / deduction is calculated pro-rata fromfto the month of addition / deduction.

Advance given for acquisition / construction of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets are presented as "Capital Advance” under Other Non Current
ASSBLS.

The assets in the process of construction or acquisition but not ready for management's intended use are included under Capital Work in progress.

An item of property, plant and equi t and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when

no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assel (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

The estimated useful lives of the assets considered by the Company is stated hereunder:

Assets Description Useful Life in Years
Office Building 60
Heavy Equipments 15
Heavy Vehicles 6
Office Appliances 5
Computer 3
Other Machinery 15
Motor Cycle,Scooter 10
Motor Vehicles B
Furniture 10
Electrical Equipments 10
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3.8 Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thal is, if the conlract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset

for a periad of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measuremen! approach for all leases, excepl for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company

recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right fo use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underiying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assels are
measured al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the |ease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimaled useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to refiect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured If there |s a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments.

The Company's lease obligations are presented on the face of the Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption lo its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a |ease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as exp on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does rot transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operaling leases. Rental
income arising is accounted for on a siraight-line basis over the lease terms and is inciuded in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direc! costs incurred in negetiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assel and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent renls are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

3.9 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for ils
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

3.10 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separalely are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life (5 years for computer software) and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired, The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of

each reporting period.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the statement of profit or loss.

31
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Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of ils property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that the cammying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
reviewed in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cosls to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflecls t market of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is gnised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an assel
exceeds ils recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of s recoverable amount
so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the stalement of profit and loss immediately.
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Provisions and contingencles
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for shori-term employee benefits that are expected lo be settled whally within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reperting period and are measured at the amounts expected lo be paid when the liabilities
are setlled. The liabilities are presented as current employee related liabilities under other financial liabilities in balance sheet.

Post - employment benefits
The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligalion is calculated annually at year end by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assels. This cost is included
in ‘Employee Benefits Expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in acluarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they oeccur,
directly in other comprehensive income, These are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past
service cost.

Defined contribution plan
The Company pays provident fund contributions o publicly administered provident fund as per local regulati The Company has no h.lrther paymant obligations once
the contribulions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributi i

ns ara d as employee benefit
when they are due. Prepaid coniributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payrnents is available.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit atfributable to equity shareholders of the Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year
(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted eamnings per share adjusts the figures used in the delermination of basic eamings per. share to take into account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs iated with diluti | equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been nuistanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Contributed equity
Equily shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as reduction, net of tax from the

proceeds.

Cash dividend
The Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the di jon of the Company. As per the
corporate laws of India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A comesponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operaling decision maker ({CODM’). The CODM is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and has been identified as the Board of Direclors of the Company.
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Note 4: Property, plant and equipment (Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Office Heavy Hea Office Motor Other . Electrical
Building |Equipment Vehlcrzs Appliances | ®™PUtF | venicies | Machinery | FU™t™® | Equipment | T
Cost
Balance at April 1, 2020 - 302.36 777.66 10.48 6.68 34.82 15.66 16.57 4.73 1,168.96
Additions - 51.60 4251 0.65 1.59 1.89 4.47 0.35 0.61 103.67
Disposals - - - - - (2.03) - - - (2.03)
Balance at March 31, 2021 - 353.96 820.17 11.13 8.27 34.68 20.13 16.92 5.34 1,270.60
Additions 1.82 27.51 B.A4AT7 0.79 1.50 373 55.07 0.63 0.34 99.96
Disposals - - - B - - - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 1.92 3681.47 828.64 11.92 9.77 3841 75.20 17.55 5.68 1,370.56
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at April 1, 2020 - 134.70 620.36 B 499 22.84 3.32 10.16 217 B06.85
Depreciation expense - 3469 56.683 1.01 1.40 367 2.70 1.689 0.70 102.49
Disposals % > - - - (1.34) - - 5 (1.34)
Balance at March 31, 2021 - 169.39 676.99 9.32 6.39 25.17 6.02 11.85 2.87 908.00
Depreciation expense 0.06 36.41 49.76 0.82 1.49 3.33 5.22 1.38 0.68 99.15
Disposals - - - - - - - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 0.06 205.80 726.75 10.14 7.88 28.50 11.24 13.23 3.55 1,007.15
Carrying amount
Balance at April 1, 2020 - 167.66 157.30 217 1.69 11.98 12.34 6.41 2,56 362.11
Balance at March 31, 2021 - 184.57 143.18 1.81 1.88 9.51 14.11 5.07 2.47 362.60
Balance at March 31, 2022 1.86 175.67 101.89 1.78 1.89 9.91 63.96 4.32 213 363.41
Note:

(a) The Company has chosen to apply Ind AS retrospectively to determine the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment as on the date of transition i.e. April 1,
(b) Refer Note 18 for details of security against borrowings.

Movement in Capital work in progress and its age analysis
(i) Movement in Capital work in progress

Particulars 4] o e
2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Balance at the beginning of the year 6.20 B -
Additions during the year 23.63 6.20 -
Capitalised during the year (6.20) - -
Balance at the end of the year 23.63 6.20 -

(ii) Age analysis of Capital work in progress

As at March 31, 2022

Less than More than 3
Particulars 1 year 1to 2 years| 2to 3 years years Total
Heavy Vehicles 23.63 - - - 2363
As at March 31, 2021
Less than More than 3
1year 1to 2 years| 2 to 3 years years Total
Heavy Equipments 6.20 - - - 6.20
As at April 1, 2020
La:s heirad 1to 2 years| 2 to 3 years Wiors then' Total
year years
Heavy Equipments - - - B &
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Note 5: Right of use assets

This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee.

The Company has taken on lease various offices, warehouses other spaces for its uses. Rental contracts typically range from 1 year to 10
years.

A. The changes in the carrying value of Right of Use assets :

Particulars Buildings
Gross Block

Balance as at April 1, 2020 56.87
Additions during the year 8.99
Deletionsfcancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 65.86
Additions during the year 0.87
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year .
Balance as at March 31, 2022 66.73
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2020 -
Charge for the year 13.00
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 13.00
Charge for the year 16.32
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 29.32
Net carrying amount as at April 1, 2020 56.87
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 52.86
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 37.41

The aggregate depreciation expense on RoU assets is included under depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B Movement in lease liabilities :

Particulars Lease Obligations
Balance as at April 1, 2020 56.87
Additions during the year 8.99
Deletions during the year -
Finance cost accrued during the year 5.32
Payment of lease labilities (15.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 55.35
Additions during the year 0.87
Deletions during the year -
Interest on lease obligation 473
Payment of lease labilities (19.83)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 41.12




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
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C The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at the year end:

Prticuiie As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Current 15.24 15.10 10.51
Non-current 25.88 40.25 46.36
Total 41.12 55.35 56.87

With the exception of shori-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the Standalone Balance
Sheet as a right of use asset and a lease liability. Payments made for short term leases and leases of low-value are expensed on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

D The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at the year end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

Particul As at As at As at
WS March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

Less than one year 18.46 19.83 15.83
One to five years 29.18 47.64 65.67
More than five years = - 1.80
Total 47.64 67.47 83.30

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk regards fo its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligation related to the lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

E The amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Particulars

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Rent expense - short-term lease and leases of low value assets

Total

F Extension and termination options

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

16.32 13.00

473 532

26.60 32.86

47.65 51.18

Extension and termination options are included in various leases. These are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of the extension and termination options held are exercisable by

the Company and not by the respective lessor.
G Discounting rate

The Company has used the incremental borrowing rate of 10% (FY 2020-21: 10% and as on the date of transition i.e. April 1, 2020:

10%) to determine the lease liabilities.
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Note B: Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill Other Intangible Assets
Trademark* Computer Total
Software
Cost/ Deemed cost
Balance at April 1, 2020 310.00 - 2.04 2.04
Additions - - 0.88 0.88
Disposals = - = a
Balance at March 31, 2021 310.00 - 292 2.92
Additions - - 0.30 0.30
Disposals - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 310.00 - 3.22 322
Disposals - - - -
Balance at April 1, 2020 - - 0.81 0.81
Amortisation expense - - 0.43 0.43
Disposals - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 - - 1.24 1.24
Amortisation expense - - 053 053
Disposals - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 - - 1.77 197
Carrying amount
Balance at April 1, 2020 310.00 - 1.23 1.23
Balance at March 31, 2021 310.00 - 1.68 168
Balance at March 31, 2022 310.00 - 1.45 1.45
* below the rounding off amount
Note:
The Company had assessed the goodwill for impairment and based on such ent, no img t was considered necessary. The goodwill is attributable to

purchase of the business from M/s Westem Carriers, erstwhile proprietorship firm owned by Mr. Rajendra Sethia. The goodwill was tested for impairment as of the year
ended March 31, 2022, and basis that the recoverable amount was determined to be higher than the carrying amount of goedwill. The Company’s profit for the current

year exceeding the carrying amount of goodwill indicates recoverability of the same as at the year end,

Note 7: Investments in subsidiaries and associates

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
Carried at cost
In Subsidary
Western Skyvilla Private Limited 10.10 10.10 10.10
1,010,000 (As at March 31, 2021 - 1,010,000 and As at April 1, 2020 - 1,010,000) equity shares of
Rs. 10 each, fully paid up;
In associates
Success Suppliers Private Limited 17.00 17.00 17.00
1,700,000 (As at March 31, 2021 - 1,700,000 and As at April 1, 2020 - 1,700,000) equily shares of
Rs. 10 each, fully paid up;
SMP Properties Private Limited 482 4.82 482
1,515 (As al March 31, 2021 - 1,515 and As al April 1, 2020 - 1,515) equily shares of Rs. 10 each,
fully paid up:
F M Carriers Private Limited
45,835 (As at March 31, 2021 - Nil and As at April 1, 2020 - Nil) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully
paid up: 11.00 - -
Total i in subsidiary and associates 42,92 31.92 31.82
Aggregate carrying t of unguoted investment: 42,92 31.92 31.92
Note 8: Investments
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1,2020
I t tin equity instr ts (Unquoted)
In Others
Investments designated at fair value through OCI
Western Apartment Private Limited TAT 747 7.47
790,000 (As al March 31, 2021 - 780,000 and As at April 1, 2020 - 780,000) equity shares of Rs. 10
each, fully paid up;
Total Non-current investment TAT 7.47 7.47
Aggregate carrying tof ung d investment: T.47 7.47 7.47
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MNote 9: Other financial assels

(i) Non current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(&) Security Deposits
(b) Fixed deposits maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date#

Total Other financial assets - non current

(i) Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits

Total Other financial assets - current

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
9.04 9.07 8.07
247.87 264.85 306.84
256.91 273.92 315.91
5584 51.79 4263
55.84 51.79 42.63

#Deposits balances in the account are not due for realisation within 12 menths from the balance sheet date are primarily placed as security with banks as collateral

and margin money for bank guarantee of Rs, 199,54 Millions (As at March 31, 2021: Rs 219,33 Millions and As at April 1, 2020: Rs 264.22 Millions).

MNote 10: Income Taxes

ised in the Stat nt of Profit and

(a) Analysis of Income tax expense recog
Loss

(i) Amount recognised in profit or loss
(8) Current tax for the current year
(b) Current tax for the earlier years
(c) Deferred tax for the current year

(ii) Amount recognised in other compret ive income

(&) Deferred tax for the current year

(b) Reconciliation of tax and the
A ing Profit before tax
At India's statutory Income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2021: 25.168%)

ing profit multiplied by tax rate:

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income

Income tax expense reported

For the year
ended
March 31, 2022

For the year
ended
March 31, 2021

22358 154.18
- 2.48
(1.20) (1.65)|
222.38 155.01
0.65 (0.28)
0.65 (0.28)]
—223.03 154.73
833.59 600.14
209.80 151.04
12.58 3.97
222.38 155.01

The Company has elecled to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxalion Laws (Amendment) Act,
2019, Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax for the year ended on March 31, 2022 onwards and remeasured their deferred lax

balances basis the rate prescribed in the said seclion.

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Provisions for employee benefits
Lease liabilities
Fair value changes of investments
Allowance for credit losses
Other financial liabilities

Total defarred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities
Right of Use Assels

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Provisions for employee benefits
Lease liabilities
Fair value changes of investments
Allowance for credit losses

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities
Right of Use Assets

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets

FY 2021-22
Balance at Deforrad tox Deferred tax
expense/ (income) Balance atend
beginning of recognised in profit expense/ (income) of the year
the year recognised in OCI
and loss

9.38 416 - 523

4.26 (1.31) (0.65) 6.22

13.93 3.58 - 10.35

0.1 - - 0.11

10.83 (0.27) - 11.10

38.51 6.16 0.65) 33.01
(13.30) (7.36) - (5.95))
(13.30) (7.38) - (5.95)

25.21 (1.20) (0.65) 27.06

FY 2020-21
Balance at Dofemed tax Deferred tax
expense! (income) Balance atend
beginning of resanRet iy expense/ (income) £ th
the year cog pro recognised in OCI of IR jenr
and loss

9.46 0.08 - 9.38

3.67 (0.87) 0.28 4.26

14.32 0,39 - 13.93

0.1 - - 0.11

10.60 (0.23) - 10.83

38.16 (0.63) 0.28 38.51
(14.32) (1.02) - (13.30)
(14.32) (1.02) - (13.30)

2384 (1.65) 0.28 25.21




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 11: Other Assets

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
(1) Non Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)
(a) Capital Advances 5.00 - =
Total Other non current assets 5.00 - -
(i) Current
(a) Advances to port authorities and other service 7.99 10.65 537
providers
(b) GST receivables 103.21 80.74 37.76
(c) Advances to employees 2529 19.03 11.33
(d) Other advances 115.73 84.30 42.51
Total Other current assets 252,22 184,72 96.97
Note 12: Income-tax Assets (Net)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
Advance taxes (including tax deducted at sources)
[Net of provisions for taxes Rs. 223.58 Millions, As at March 31, 2021: Rs. 156 66 Milions and As at April 1, 2020: Rs. 49,56 17.01 27.97
158,20 Millions)
Total income-tax assets (Net) 49.56 17.01 27.97
Note 13: Trade receivables
(L ed, Idered good, unless stated otherwise) As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
Trade bies, ed, i d good 3,113.89 252382 1,8685.54
Trade recelvables, having significant increase in credit risk - = *
Trade receivables, credit impairad 44,10 43.03 42.13
3,157.99 2,566.55 1,807 .67
Less: Allowances for expecied credit losses (44.10) (43.03) (42.13)]
Total Trade receivables 3,113.89 2,523.52 1,865.54
Discl of t bal as per Ind AS 115, R from Contract with C s
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
Contract balances
Trade receivable - Billed 2,737.41 2,370.91 1,889.69
Trade receivable - Unbilled 420.58 185.64 17.88
Total Contract balances 3,157.99 2,666.55 1,907.67
Thera is no contract fiabiiities (Advance from cuslomers)
Ageing of trade recejvables
As at March 31, 2022
Age bracket Unblileg | Lessthant (B8 ";";":_‘: < ";:.’: 2 | 3 yoars 1o 3 years | Mora than 3 years Total
Undi: d trade receivables — considerad good 420.58 2,637.44 44,38 5.66 2.53 2.58 3,147
Undisputed trade ivabl d doubtful - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - - - 43,82 43.82
Disputed Irade receivables considered doubtful - - - - - - -
Total Ageing of receivables 420.58 2,637.44 44.38 6.66 2.53 46.40 3,157.99
As at March 31, 2021
Age bracket Unbilled L';:m L n:o:;:: w3 ';:::‘ 21, years to 3 years | More than 3 years Total
Undisg d trade bles — d good 195,64 2,286.39 32.16 4,83 1.83 1.88 252273
Undisputed trade receivablas —considared doubtful - - - - - . =
Disputed Irade receivabies considered good - - - 43,82 4382
Disputed trade receivables considerad doubtful - = - = - - =
Total Ageing of receivables 195.64 2,286.39 32.16 4.83 1.83 45.70 2,566.55
As at April 1, 2020
Age bracket Unbilled L’:;::: 5|2 'T:::: |1 y:::: i 2 years to 3 years | More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 17.98 1,791.41 43.82 6.72 215 1.67 1.8&3.3?
Undisputed trade receivables —considered doubtful - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables considered good . - - - 6.03 3778 43.82
Disp trade i i doubtful - - - - - - -
Total Ageing of receivables 17.98 1,791.41 43.92 6.72 B8.18 39.48 1,907.67
Note:
(a) The ageing has been determined from the date they wera invoiced to the customers. Refer Note 37 on credit risk for mare details,
({b) Movement in allowances for expected credit loss
For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Allowances for expected credit losses at the beginning of the year 43.03 42.13
Allowances created during the year [Refer note 30] 1.07 0.90
Allowances utilised / reversed during the year s =
All for ted credit | at the end of the year 44.10 43.03




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
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Note 14: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Balances with bank in current accounts

Balances with bank in deposit accounts*
Total cash and cash equivalents
*Original maturity of less than three months

Note 15: Other bank balances

Balances with bank in deposit accounts#
Total other bank balances

(Amounts In Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
571 7.47 528
19.03 2647 51.28
= - 4,64
24,74 33.94 61.21
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
107.25 7475 3.9
107.25 T4.76 31.97

#Deposits balances in the account are due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date, but original maturity of more than three months are primarily placed as
securily with banks as collateral and margin money for bank guarantese of Rs. 103.98 Millions (As at March 31, 2021: Rs 74.75 Millions and As at April 1, 2020: R's 31.95 Millions).

Note 16: Loans

(i) Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)
(a) Loans to body corporates and others

Total loan - current

i lating to Loans granted to related parties repayable on demand

Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanding
Percentage to the lotal Loans and Advances in the nature of loans

Note 16.1

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
170.34 280.67 348.38
170.34 280.67 348,38
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
127.52 267.26 293.47
74.86% 95.22% 84.24%

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity,

ing (whether recorded in writing or otherwisa) that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest

including foreign entities ( ") with the under

in other persons/ entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘'ultimate beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 16.2

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), Including forelgn entities (*Funding party") with the understanding (whether recorded In wriling or
otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party (ultimate

beneficianes); or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Note 16.3
Disclosure as per section 186(4) of lhe Companies Act, 2013

Party Name®

Aditl Industries Limited

B.Daulat Limited

F M Carriers Private Limited

Gipsy Management PrivateLimiled
Kunal Resources Privale Limited

Mm Carbon Products PrivateLimited
Paragon Overseas Limited

Response Renewable Energy Limited
Swasti Housing Projects (P) Limited
Watercrafts Bottlers LLP

Western Apartments Private Limited
Western Conglomerate Limited
Westemn Herbicides Private Limited
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Westem Logistics Private Limited
Western Skyvilla Private Limited
Western Warehousing Private Limited

*The above loans have been given for business purpose and details of investments made are given in note 7 and 8.

Note 16.4
There are no oul ding It /advances in nature of loan from p key manag p

Note 16.5

Outstanding Bal
As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

10.00 -
14.00 -
- 11.00
51.77 4984
- 1.51
5.26 5.891
379 349
5 -
4.47 4.1
179 -
1.18 1.1
2312 2312
- 6.04
- 31.47
1833 16.95
6,85 -
26.27 126.21

&l or other officers of the Company.

The Company has complied wilth the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
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Note 17: Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

45,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each
(As at March 31, 2021: 45,000,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each)
(As at April 1, 2020: 45,000,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each)

15,000,000 Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each#
{As at March 31, 2021: 15,000,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each)
(As at April 1, 2020: 15,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

Total authorised share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

(a) Reconciliation of the

39,349,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
(As at March 31, 2021: 39,349,700 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up)
(As at April 1, 2020; 39,349,700 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up)
Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

# Red il

Non Cumulative Pref
additional details.

ber of sh

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
Balance at the end of the year

(b) Details of equity shares held by the promoters at the year end

Si

No

1

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 3921 April 1, 2020
450.00 450.00 450.00
150.00 150.00 150.00
600.00 £00.00 600.00
393.50 393.50 393.50
393.50 393.50 393.50

ding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

e Shares has been issued, subscribed and fully paid up, however are classified as financial liabilities. Refer Note 19 for

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
3,93,49,700 303.50 3,93,49,700 393.50
3,93,49,700 393.50 3,93,49,700 393.50

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Name No. of shares* “%age holding No. of shares* %age holding No. of shares* “tage holding
Rajendra Sethia 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3.93,45,100 99.99%
3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99%

* There are no changes in the promoters shareholding as at the end of any of the years presented.

{c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares issued by the Company

The Company has only ane class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the halders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after the payment of all the preferential amounts.

(d) Details of equity shares held by equity shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
No. of shares %age holding No. of shares %hage holding No. of shares “sage holding
Rajendra Sethia 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99%
3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.89% 3,93,45,100 99.99%
Note 18: Other equity
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Retalned eamings 2.033.07 1.571.86 1.126.73
Remeasurement of employee defined benefits (1.56) 0.37 (0.47)
FVOCI -Equity investments (0.32) (0.32) (0.32)
Capital redemplion reserve 150.00 - -
2,181.18 1,571.91 1,125.94
Retained Eamings
As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,571.86 1,126.73
Profit for the year 611.21 44513
Transfer to capital redemption reserve (150.00) -
Balance at the end of the year 2,033.07 1,571.86
R uri t of employee defined benefits
As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.37 (0.47)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (1.93) 0.84
(1.56) 0.37




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

FVOCI - Equity Instruments

As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.32) (0.32)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
(0.32) (0.32)

(a) Retained eamings
Retained earnings are the profils that the Company has eamed till dale, less any transfers to reserves, dividends or other distributions paid lo shareholders. Retained
eamnings (s a free reserve available to the Company.

(b) R it of I defined benefits

Remeasurement of employee defined benefits represents re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) FVOCI equity investments

The Company has el to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These changes are
accumulated within the FVOC! equity investments reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained eamings when the relevant
equity securities are derecognised.

(d) Capital redemption reserve

The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Companies Act") requires that where a Company redeem its preference shares out of free reserves or securities premium, a sum equal
to the nominal value of the preference shares so red d shall be transferred lo a capilal redemplion reserve and delails of such transfer shall be disclosed in the
balance sheet. The capilal redemption reserve may be applied by the Company, in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to shareholders of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares,
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{Amounts in Rs. Milllons, unless stated otherwise)

Note 19: Borrowings

As at As at As at
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
A. Non-current
(a) Secured borrowings
Term loans from banks
(i) Vehicles Finance 71.87 165.77 183.97
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (57.12) (9390))  (78.48)]
14.75 71.87 105.48
(i} Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines (GECL) 199.54 172.20 -
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 43.74 B.16; -
155.80 164.04 -
(b) Unsecured borrowings
1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares - 116.58 108.96 |
Total Long-term borrowings 170.55 352.49 212.45
B. Current
{a) Secured borrowings
(i) Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Cash Credits 1,156.97 893.22 £63.97
- Qverdraft 15.80 - =
(i) Current maturities of long-term borrowings
- Vehicles Finance 57.12 93.90 78.48
- Guaranteed Emergency Credil Lines 4374 8.16 -
(b) Unsecured borrowings
- From Others &6.76 623 6.00
Total Short-tarm borrowings 1,280.39 1,001.51 748.45
Total borrowings 1,450.94 1,354.00 960.90
(a) Term loans from banks
(i} Vehicle Finance
The above loans are secured by hypothecation of Vehicle/Equipment purchased out of the above Loan.
Amount Amount Amount
Total No, of Rate of ling tstanding il
staimonts | TviestBtartDatel  Maturity Interost As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
3 April 5, 2021 - 7.40%- 14.21
HDFC Bank 23-48 May 5, 2017 February 15, 2024 9.05% 30.94 67.93 2
: July 15, 2021 - 8,70% -
Kotak Mahindra 36 - 47 July 15, 2018 December 22, 2022 9.15% 31.93 97 84 169.76
71.87 165.77 183.97
(il) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines
(GECL)
The above loans are 100% guaranteed by | Credit Gu Trusteas C. y along with secured by hwnttwm‘hm by way of Second Charge on book debts and collaterally
secured by bl rties of the C y and i ble proparti ownadbyShn Rajendra Sethia and p y g teed by K Sethia and Rajendra Sethia, Director of
the Company.
Amount Amount Amount
Total No. of Rate of ding ding tstandi
mstalments | EVTiest Start Dats Winturty Interest As at Asat Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
48 equal monthly
HDFC Bank instalments after February 7, 2022 January 7, 2026 8.25% 63.66 66.00 -
moratorium of 1 year
36 equal monthly
Kotak Mahindra instaiments after January 7, 2022 | December 7, 2024 B.25% 40.72 44.00 -
moratorium of 1 year
43-47 equal monthly
instalments after
Indian Bank orium of 14-24 February 15,2022 | January 15, 2028 B.30% 95.16 62.20 -
months
199.54 172.20 0.00
(b) 1% Red Non C lative Prefi Shares

1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (Preference shares) wers issued on March 27, 2014 for a term of 10 years. The coupon on the preference of 1% was below market
rate and accordingly on the transition to Ind AS, it was fair valued and the difference between the carrying ameunt and falr value (as on transition date i.e. April 1, 2020) of Rs. 43.04
Millions was recognised in other equity. The Company has redeemed the preference shares on March 10, 2022, earller than its malurity date. The difference between the carrying amount
and redemption amount of Rs. 23.49 Millions has been recognised as “Loss on early redemption of preferenca shares” under other expenses

(¢) Unsecured borrowings from others

Unsecured borrowings from others represents borrowings from body corporates, which is repayable on demand.

(d) Quarterly return or statements filed with banks
The Company has filed quarterly retums or statements with the banks in lieu of the sanctioned working capital facilities. Thers was no material difference between the amount of trade
(billed) were lower by Rs.

t of trade ivabl

receivables (billed) reported 1o the banks, except for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, whereby the
264 80 milions and Rs. 244 67 millions respectively. Such differences were due to adj pursuant to reconcili ‘with the

(e} wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or ether lender o government or any gevernment authority
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{Amounts in Rs. Milllons, unless stated otherwise)

(f) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Register of Comy (ROC)
Tne Company do not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be reg with Regi of Companies beyond the statutory period,
Note 20: Other financial liabilities
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Nen-current
(a) Trada payables - deferred t obligati : - 4523
- - 45.23
Current
(a) Book overdrafts - 15.88 -
(b) Payable lo employees 3419 19.79 11.70
(c) Other payables 26.62 3.82 14.70
Total Other financial liabilities 61.01 39.47 26.40

Other current payable includes payable to capital creditors of Rs. 23.63 Millions (March 31, 2021 - Rs. Nil and April 1, 2020 - Rs. Nil)

Note 21: Provisions

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Non-current
Prowvi for employee benefit:
Employee defined benefit obligation - Gratuity [Refer note 33] 22.04 1467 1191
Total Long-term provisions 22.04 14.67 11.91
Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Employee defined benefit obligation - Gratuity [Refer note 33] 268 2.27 267
Total Short-term provisions 2.68 2.27 2,67 |

Note 22: Trade payables

As at As at As at
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

(&) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note (a) below) - = =

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises £48.50 779.31 817 54
Total Trade payables 649,50 779.01 917.54
Ageing of trade payables

As at March 31, 2022
Unbilled Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

MSME = = - - - -

Others - 648.50 - - - 649.50

Disputed dues-MSME - - - - . -

Disputed Dues- Others - - - - B .

Total - 649.50 - - - 649.50

As at March 31, 2021
Not due Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

MSME - = - = = =

Others - 778.31 - - - T79.31

Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -

Disputed Dues- Others - - - 2 B -

Total - 779.31 - - - 779.M1

As at April 1, 2020
Not due Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

MSME - - = = = =

Cthers - 917.54 - - = 917.54

Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - <

Disputed Dues- Others - - - - - -

Total - 917.54 - - - 917.54

(a) The ageing has been determined from the date of the invoice.

(b} As per information available with the Company there are no dues of micro and small enterprises and accordingly the information required under the MSME Act, 2006 are not required
The same has been relied by the auditors.

(c) There are no disputed dues of any creditors as on March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and April 1, 2020, respectively

Note 23: Other current llabilities

As at As at As at
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

(a) Statutery Dues 4712 37.78 38.54
(b) Deferred Income = s ;
Total Other current liabilities 47.12 a7.78 43.06
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Note 24: Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with customers
(a) Revenue from Freight, Handling, Agency & Other Charges

Total revenue from operations

Note:

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

14,708.75

11,101.12

14,708.75

11,101.12

(a) The Company recognises revenue when control over the services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to

which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

(b} The Company does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognized in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

(¢) The Company recognises revenue from rendering of services overtime, as and when such services are performed.

Note 25: Other income

(a) Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
(i) Interest income from loans to body corporate and others
(ii) Interest income from deposits with banks

(b) Insurance claims

(c) Other miscellaneous income

Total other income

MNote 26: Operational expenses

(a) Freight, Handling & Other Charges
Total Operational expenses

Note 27: Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus

(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
{c) Gratuity (Refer note 33)

(d) Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

Note 28: Finance costs

(a) Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

- Interest expenses on short-term borrowings from banks and financial
institutions

- Interest expenses on term loans banks

- Interest expenses on Preference shares classified as liabilities
- Interest expenses on loans from body corporate

- Interest on other long-term financial liabilities

(b) Interest on lease obligations

(c) Other borrowing costs
Total finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

17.77 210

17.56 21.54

4.12 4.76

9.65 9.36

49.10 37.76

For the year ended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

12,804.09 9,607.17
12,804.09 9,607.17

For the year ended

| March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

313.99 243.71
14.71 11.10
5.53 3.83
36.14 18.50
370.37 27714
For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

80.85 B6.26
34.07 17.13
11.43 11.12
0.59 0.57

- 4.52
4.73 532
7.53 5.05
139.20 120.97
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Note 29: Depreciation and amortisation expense

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipments
(b) Amortisation of intangible assets

(c) Depreciation of right of use assets
Total depreciation and amortisation expense

Note 30: Other expenses

(a) Donation and subscriptions
{b) Corporate social responsibility expenses [Refer Note 40]
(c) Loss on early redemption of preference share
(d) Rent expenses
(e) Repairs and maintenance
- Vehicle and equipment
(f) Maintenance and upkeep charges
(g) Electricity expenses
(h) Bank charges
(I) Travelling and conveyance expenses
(j) Insurance charges
(k) Printing & stationery expenses
(l) Telephone expenses
(m) Auditors' Remuneration [Refer 30.1 below]
(n) Loss on sale of assets
(o) Allowance for doubtful debts
(p) Other general expenses
Total other expenses

30.1 Auditors' Remuneration

Audit fees - statutory audit

Audit fees - tax audit
Total auditors remuneration

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
99.15 102.49
0.53 0.43
16.32 13.00
116.00 115.92

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
4.03 417
11.58 4.93
23.49 -
26.60 32.86
291.98 258.49
8.00 571
3.78 3.47
2.98 237
35.60 26.02
6.39 4.80
495 443
414 3.61
1.20 0.50
- 0.18
1.07 0.90
68.80 56.09
494.60 408.54
For the yearended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1.05 0.37
0.15 0.13
1.20 0.50
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Note 31: Earnings per share

Profit after tax for the year (in Rs. Millions)

Profit available to the equity shareholders (in Rs. Millions) (a)
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year
Number of equity shares at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear (b)
Nominal value of each eauitv share (in Rs.)

Basic earnings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.)
Diluted earnings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.)

{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year
ended
March 31, 2022

For the year
ended
March 31, 2021

611.21
811.21
3,93,49,700
3,83,49,700

3,93,49,700
10.00

15.53
15.53

44513
44513
3,93,49,700
3,93,49,700

3,93,49,700
10.00

1.3
11.31

There have been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorization of these financial

stalements.

Note 32; Contingencies and Committments
(a) Contingent liabilities
Claims nol acknowledged as debls

- Income - lax

Note 33: Employee Benefits
Employees Defined Contribution Plans - Provident Fund
The Company provides Provident Fund facility to eligible employees. The fund is

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

April 1, 2020

1.15

wer of the Providend Fund. The contributions are expensed as

they are incurred in line with the treatment of wages and salaries. The liability of the Company s limited to the contribution deducted from the salary of the employee and the
Company's share. The Company has recognized, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, an amount of Rs. 14.71 Millions Lakhs (for the year ended March

31, 2021: Rs 11.10 Millions) as expenses under defined contribution plans.
Employee Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity [Unfunded]

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Graluity Act, 1972, Employees who are in confinuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ermination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied

by the number of years of service completed, subject to the imum
liability and make the payments as and when they become due from its own funds.

Amounts recognised in the financial statements

The amounts recognised in the financial statements and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets is as under:

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Current service cost
Interest expense/ income

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included In interest expense/(income)
Actuarial (gain)loss from change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gain)loss from change in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)loss from unexpected experience

Total amount recognised in OCI
Employer contributions/ premium paid
Benelil paymenta

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Current service cost
Interest expense/ income

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income)
Actuarial (gain)ioss from change in demographic assumpticns
Actuarial (gain}oss from change in financial assumplions
Actuarial (gain)loss from unexpected experience

Total amount recognised in OCI
Employer contributions/ premium paid
Benefit payments

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Classification of the obligation into current and non current

Current
Nen-Current

t of Rs. 2 Million. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan. The Company does not fully fund the

Defined benefit |Fair value of plan
bligati aksols Net amount
14.58 - 14.58
281 = 281
1.02 - 1.02
383 - 3.83
017 - 017
(1.28) - (1.28)
(1.12) - (1.12)
- (3.63) (3.63)
0.35 (3.83) (3.28) |
16.94 - 16.94
4.36 - 436
117 - 117
5.53 - 553
0.05 - 0.05
2.53 - 2.53
2.58 = 2.58 |
- 0.34 0.34
0.34 0.34 0.67
24.72 - 24,72
As at As at As at
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
268 227 2867
22.04 14.67 11.61
2472 16.94 14.58
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(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Hal 4 i As at As at As at
The:signtcant sctsist assumptons wees de-follows: March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 | April1,2020
Rate of discounting 7.10% 6.90% 7.00%
Rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

; Indian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assured
Martakty fate dunng emplcyment Lives Mortality | Lives Mortality | Lives Mortality

{2012-14) ultimate | (2012-14) ultimate | (2012-14) ultimate
(i) Sensitivity analysis
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to Increase Decrease increase Decrease
changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Discount rate (+/- 1%) 2.00 (2.34) 1.34 (1.56)
Salary growth rate (+/- 1%) (2.43) 2.1 (1.62) 1.40

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be comrelated.

Furtk , Inp ting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reperting peﬁod which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensilivity analysis from prior years.

(iv) Major categories of plans asset
The scheme is unfunded.

(v) Risk exposure

Through ils defined benefil plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Pay-as-you-go Risk:

For unfunded schemes financial planning could be difficult as the benefits payable will directly affect the revenue and this could be widely fluctuating from year lo year.
Mareover there may be an opportunity cost of better investment returns affecting adversely the cost of the scheme.

Discount rate risk:
The Company is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit thereby

increasing the value of the liability,

Liguidity Risk:

This risk arises from the short term asset and liability cash-flow mismatch thereby causing the company being unable to pay the benefits as they fall due in the short term.
Such a situation could be the result of holding large illiquid assels disregarding the results of cash-flow projections and cash oulgo inflow mismatch. (Or it could be due to
insufficient assets/cash.)

Future Salary Increase Risk:
The Scheme cost is very sensitive to the assumed future salary escalation rates for all final salary defined benefit Schemes. If aclual fulure salary escalations are higher
than that assumed in the valuation actual Scheme cost and hence the value of the liability will be higher than thal estimated.

Demographic Risk:
In the valuation of the liability certain demographic (mortality and aftrition rates) assumptions are made. The Company is exposed o this risk to the extent of actual
experience eventually being worse compared to the assumptions thereby causing an increase in the scheme cost.

Regulatory Risk:
Gratuity Benefit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended up-lo-date). There is a risk of change in the regulations requiring

higher gratuity payments (e.g. raising the present ceiling of Rs. 2 Millions, raising accrual rate from 15/26 etc.)

(vi) Other disclosures

a. Expected conltribution for next year (12 months), i.e. 2022-23: Rs. 8.55 Millions
b. Weighted ge duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.21 years (As at March 31, 2021: 5,05 years, As at April 1, 2020: 5.13 years)
¢. Estimated Cash Flows (Undi 1ted) in subsequent years

As at As at As at
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Within 1 year 2,68 227 268
210 5years 8.31 542 4.61
6o 10 years .32 6.33 5.24
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 34: Financial Instruments and fair value measurements

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company at the end of the year and the transition date is as under:
As at As at As at
C‘;":m“u"'}"f March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
liabilities Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value Clrryin? Fair value

Financial assets amount amount
Investments in equity instruments FVOCI 747 747 7.47 7.47 7.47 747
Loans Amortised Cost 170.34 170.34 280,67 280,67 348.38 348,38
Trade receivables Amortised Cost 3,113.89 311389 2,523.52 2,523 52 1,865.54 1,865.54
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised Cost 24.74 24,74 294 3394 61.21 61.21
Other balances with bank Amortised Cost 107.25 107.25 7475 74.75 31.97 31.97
Other Financial assets (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 31275 312.75 32571 325.71 358.54 358.54

Total 3,736.44 3,736.44 3,246.06 3,246.06 2,673.11 2,673.11
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings (including current maturity) | Amortised Cost 271141 268.09 454 55 438.74 200.93 269.19
Short-term borrowings Amortised Cost 1,179.53 1,179.53 899.45 899.45 669.97 669.97
Lease liabilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 41.12 4112 55.35 55,35 56.87 56.87
Trade payables Amortised Cost 649.50 549.50 779.1 779.31 917.54 917.54
Other financial liabilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 61.01 61.01 39.47 38.47 71.63 71.63

Total 2,202.57 2,198.25 2,228.13 2,212.32 2,006.94 1,985.20

(i} The carrying amounts of current financial assets and liabilities carried at amorlised cost closely approximate to their fair values as the impact of discounting on such
financial assets or liabilities is not significant considering the instruments matures in a very shor time.

(i) Unsecured loans from related parties are repayble on demand and accordingly represents its fair value.

(iiiy Long-term security deposits are repayable on closure of conlracls i.e., repayable on demand and accordingly carrying amount reflect its fair values. The same can be
categorised as Level 3 fair value.

(iv) Long-term borrowings carries both fixed and variable rate of interest. For variable interest rate borrowings, carrying amounts are considered to represent fair value of
such borrowings. For fixed rate borrowings fair values have been delermined using discounted cash flow approach using the current interest rates. The fair values of the
borrowings can be categorised as Level 2 fair values.

(v) Fair value of investment in equity instruments is determined using the cost method. The fair value of the investments is classified level 3. There is no significant
operations in the investee entity and accordingly there are no significant changes in the fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounling standard,

(a) Level 1 - Quoted prices in an active market:
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with observable inputs:
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level
2.

(c) Level 3 - Fair values d using valuati hnig with significant unobservable inputs:
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and financial liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable markel data (unobservable inpuls). Fair
values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

There are no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
Note 35: Capital management
Risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:
(a) safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(b) Maintain an optimal capital structure lo reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equily atiributable to equity shareholders of the Company which comprises issued share
capital and accumulated reserves disclosed in the statement of changes in equity and debts appearing as part of the borrowings.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The funding
requirement is met through a mixture of equity, long lerm borrowings and short term borrowings.

Note 36: Reconclliation of debts
This section sets out an analysis of debt and the movements therein

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021| April 1, 2020
Long-term borrowings including current maturities 271.41 337.97 183.97
1% Red ble Non Cumulative Preference Shares - 116.58 106.96
Short-term borrowings 1,179.53 B99.45 669.97
Lease obligations (current and non-current) 41.12 55.35 56.87
1,492.06 1,409.35 1,017.77
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1%
l:“::g:f:; Redeemable Lease
including Non Short-term obligations
Srrset Cumulative borrowings (current and
Preference non-current)
maturities Sh
ares
Net debt as at April 1, 2020 182.97 106.96 669.97 56.87
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken during the year - = - 8.99
Proceeds from borrowings during the year 23437 - 22948
Interest expense for the year 17.13 11.12 86.83 532
Interest paid during the year (17.13) (1.50) (86.83) (5.32)
Repayment of borrowings / lease liability during the year (B0.37) - = (10.51)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 337.97 116.58 899.45 55.35
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken during the year - - - 0.87
Proceeds from borrowings during the year 35.50 - 280.08
Interest expense for the year 3407 11.43 B1.44 473
Interest paid during the year (34.07) (1.50) (81.44) (4.73)
Loss on early redemption of preference share - 23.49 - .
Repayment of borrowings / lease liability during the year (102.06) (150.00) (15.10)
Net debt as at March 31, 2022 271.41 - 1,179.53 41.12
Note 37: Fil ial risk m g
In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in interest rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial
instruments. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial perf of the Company, the Company has risk gement policies as described below:
(A)  Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade ivables) including deposils with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions,
other financial instruments carried at amortised cost.
Financial instruments that are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally ist of trade receivables, loans ivables, cash and cash equivalents and
other bank balances held by the Company. Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank bal of the Comp result in material concentration of
credit risk.

(8)

The camying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credil risk was Rs. 3,728.97 Millions, Rs. 3,238.59 Millions and
Rs. 2,665.62 Millions as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and April 1, 2020 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivables, balances with bank, bank
deposits, loans and other financial assets.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through established policy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally carrying 30 to 60 days credit terms. The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer
receivables at various levels within the organisation to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation. The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of
customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and ageing of accounts receivable.

Financial assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk.

The requirement for impairment is analysed at each reporting date, The Company' receivables tumover is quick and historically, there was no significant defaulls on
account of those customer in the past. Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expecled credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust
the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109, Flnancial Instruments. Expected credit losses

are measured at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses. The Company has used a practical fient by ing the expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account hlﬂunw credil loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
infi tion.The outstanding ivables are regularly monitored to minimise the credit risk.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and
industries and operate in largely independent markets, Of the trade receivables balance, Rs. 1,618.54 Millions in aggregale (Rs. 1,224.62 Millions as at March 31, 2021
and Rs. 1,113.56 Millions as at April 1, 2020) is due from the Company's customers individually representing more than 5% of the total frade receivables balance and
accounted for approximately 51.98% (48% as at March 31, 2021 and 58% as al March 31, 2020) of all the receivables outstanding.

Other financial instruments and bank deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's finance department in dance with the Company’s policy. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company's Board of Directors.
The limils are set to minimise the concenlration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure (0 make payments,

Balances with banks and deposits are placed only with highly rated banks/inancial institution.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liguidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecled cash flows. This is generally
performed in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company,

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impac! of
discounting is not significant.

As at March 31, 2022 Contractual maturities of fi al liabilities
Less than 1 1-2 yeares 2-3 years Wore thin 3 Total
year years

Borrowings 1,298.01 73.36 60.61 50.68 1,491.66
Lease liabilities 18.46 12.38 12.30 4.50 47.64
Trade payables 6549.50 - - = 649.50
Other financial liabilities 61.01 - - - 81.01
Total financial liabilities 2,026.98 B5.74 7291 64.18 2,249.81




Less than 1 More than 3
As at March 31, 2021 year 1-2 yeares 2-3 years years Total
Borrowings 1,028.28 117.28 22112 79.76 1,446.43
Lease liabilities 19.83 1B.46 12.38 16.80 67.47
Trade payables 779.31 - - - 779.31
Other financial liabilities 39.47 = = = 39.47
Total financial liabilities 1,866.89 135.74 233.50 96.56 2,332.69

Less than 1 More than 3
As at April 1, 2020 yoar 1-2 yeares 2.3 years years Total
Borrowings 763.32 78.79 373N 151.48 1,030.90
Lease liabilities 15.83 19.83 18.46 20.18 83.30
Trade payables 917.54 - - - 917.54
Other financial liabilities 71.63 - = - 71.63
Total financial liabilities 1,768.32 98.62 55.77 180.66 2,103.37

(C) Market Risk
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interesl rales relales primarily to the Company's debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the fulure
cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure on financial liabilities

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021| April 1, 2020
Fixed rate borrowings 71.87 282.35 290.93
Wariable rate borrowings 1,379.07 1,071.85 669.97
Total borrowings 1,450.84 1,354.00 960.90

Sensitivity to changes in interest rates
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher! lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Impact on Impact on
profit before pact on equity profit before |Impact on equity
tax tax
Interest expense rates — increase by 50 basis points (50 bps)* 6.90 5.16 5.36 4.01
Interest expense rates — decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps)* (6.90) (5.16) (5.36) (4.01

* Holding all other variables constant

Foreign currency risk
The Company undertakes transactions (e.g. sale of goods, foreign currency loan, purchase of raw materials, etc.) denominated in foreign currencies and thus Is exposed

The Company did not have any exposure fo the foreign currency as at the year ends.
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Note 38: Related Party Disclosures
(a) List of related parties and relationship

Name
Mr. Rajendra Sethia, Managing Director

Mr. Kanishka Sethia, Whole-time Director

Mrs. Sushila Sethia, Whole-time Director

Mr. Sunil Munshi, Independent Director

Mr. Bipradas Bhattacharjee, Independent Director

Kunal Resources Private Limited
\Western Logistics Private Limited
Western Warehousing Private Limited
\Western Apartments Private Limited
\Western Conglomerate Limited
Western Herbicides Private Limited
\Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Gipsy Management Private Limited
Western Skyvilla Private Limited

F.M Carrlers Private Limited

(b) Transactions with the related parties

Relationship
Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or contral
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Subsidiary

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control upto March 23,

2022. Associate w.e.f March 24, 2022

Name of the related parties Nature of transactions Fn;:r:::;:r:::; i Fo;:::hy::.r :::1“3
Western Warehousing Private Limited Loans given i 13.66
Western Logistics Private Limited Loans given 0.09 1.25
F.M. Carriers Private Limited Loans given - 11.00
Kunal Resources Private Limited Loans given - 1.20
Western Apartments Private Limited Loans given % 1.1
Western Skyvilla Private Limited Loans given 6.62 -
Kunal Resources Private Limited Loans repaid 151 -
Western Warehousing Private Limited Loans repaid 107.83 -
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited Loans repaid 3147 -
Western Herbicides Private Limited Loans repaid 6.04 -
Gipsy Management Private Limited Loans repaid 3.3¢8 -
F.M Carriers Private Limited Loans repaid 11.00 -
Western Conglomerate Limited Loans repaid - 54,53
Gipsy Management Private Limited Interest on loan 580 -
\Western Apartments Private Limited Interest on loan 0.07 -
Western Logistics Private Limited Interest on loan 1.44 -
Western Skyvilla Private Limited Interest on loan 0.25 "
Western Warehousing Private Limited Interest on loan 8.76 -
F.M Carriers Private Limited Investment in Shares 11.00 -
Rajendra Sethia Rent Paid 942 9.42
Western Warehousing Private Limited Rent Paid 11.39 -
Rajendra Sethia Directors Remuneration 6.40 360
Kanishka Sethia Directors Remuneration 3.60 240
Sushila Sethia Directors Remuneration 2.80 1.20
Sunil Munshi, Director Sitting fees - -
Bipradas Bhattacharjee, Director Sitting fees 030 0.25
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{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Additional disclosures pertaining to comp tion of key managerial personnel
For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{a) Short-term employee benefits 12.80 7.20
(b) Sitting fees 0.30 0.25
13.10 7.45
(c) Year end balances with related parties
Name of the related parties Nature of balances As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Kunal Resources Private Limited Loans receivable - 1.51
Western Warehousing Private Limited Loans receivable 26.27 126.21
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited Loans receivable - 31.47
\Western Conglomerate Limited Loans receivable 23.13 23.12
Western Herbicides Private Limited Loans receivable = 6.04
Gipsy Management Private Limited Loans receivable 51.77 49.84
\Western Logistics Private Limited Loans receivable 18.33 16.95
F.M. Carriers Private Limited Loans receivable - 11.00
Western Skyvilla Private Limited Loans receivable 6.85 -
Western Apartments Private Limited Loans receivable 1.18 1.1

Note 39: Segment Disclosures

The Company is engaged in providing logistics and allied services to various customers in India and is a major logistics service provider. The performance of
the Company s assessed and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM") as a single operating segment and accordingly logistics and allied

services is the only operating segment.

The Company is domiciled in India, and also provides services in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers spiit by location of the customers

is shown in the table below.

Revenue from external customers For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
India 14,708B.75 11,101.12
QOutside India - -
Total 14,708.75 11,101.12

There are no non-current assets located in foreign countries,

Revenues of approximately Rs. 6,744.24 Millions (for the year ended March 31, 2021 - Rs. 4,552.00 Millions) are derived from 3 customers individually having

revenues of 10% or more.
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions,

stated otherwise

" As at As at N
Ratios March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 %/Clange Ramarks
Current Ratio 1.68 1.40 20.40%
Debt-equity ratio 0.69 0.63 8.94%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.06 - 248 23.27%
Return on investment 0.04 0.04 0.90%
Return on Equity Ratio 1.13 0.95 18.92%
Inventory turnover ratio N/A NIA N/A
Trade Receivables turnover ratio 5.06 551 -8.23%
Trade payables turnover ratio 11.32 9.77 15.88%

i " Due to increase in

Met capital turnover ratio B.65 15.29 ~43.45% payment cycle
Net profit ratio 0.04 0.04 14.34%
Return on Capital employed 0.30 0.35 -15.24%
Note 1
Ratios Numerator Denominator
Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities
Debt-equity ratio Total debt Total equity

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on investment
Return on Equity Ratio

Inventory turnover ratio

Trade Receivables turnover ratio
Trade payables turnover ratio
Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio
Return on Capital employed

Mote 44: Struck off companies

Earnings available for debt service=Net Profit
after taxes + Non-cash operating
expenses+interest expense

Income generated from invested funds
Net Profits after taxes — Preference Dividend

Not applicable

Revenue from operations
Operational expenses
Revenue from operations

Net Profits after taxes
Earnings before interest and taxes

The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

Note 45: Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that have occurred after the

information.

Debt Service=Interest and lease payments +
Principal Repayments

Average invested funds
Average total equity = (Opening+Closing)/2

Not applicable

Average of trade receivables =
(Opening+Closing)/2

Average of trade payables = (Opening+Closing)/2
Working capital = Current assets - current
liabilities

Revenue from operations

Capital employed = Networth + Long term
borrowing + Lease liability + Deferred tax liability

reporting period till the date of these standalone financial
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{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 46: First- time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS

These are the Company's first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the standalone financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2022 and
the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and in preparation of an opening Ind AS
balance sheet at April 1, 2020 (the Company date of transition). In preparing of its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the
amount reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (Previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

An explanation of how the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s standalone financial statements for the previous years.

Exemptions and exceptions availed
In preparing standalone financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions on the
transition date.

A. Ind AS optional exemptions availed

(a) Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2020 and applied the standard to its leases with modified
retrospective approach, by calculating right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at the beginning of the current period using guidance under Ind AS
1186.

{b) Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI on the bases of facts and circumstances at the date of transition
to Ind AS.

B. Ind AS mandatory exceptions

(a) Estimates

As per Ind AS 101, an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS and at the end of the comparative period
presented in the entity's first Ind AS financial statements, as the case may be, should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with the previous GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted
to reflect any differences in accounting policies.

As per Ind AS 101,where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under previous GAAP those
estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities or at the
end of the comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).

The Company estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation of the financial statements
that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

- Impairment of goodwill based on the value in use of assets model.

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

(b) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition.
Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of
transition if retrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition

{a) Reconciliation between equity as per the audited standalone financial statements and equity as in accordance with the Ind AS standalone financial
statements prepared.

As at As at
&l e Rartieuises et March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Equity as per the audited financial statements 2,021.51 1,645,112
(a) Reclassification of Preference shares (0] (150.00) (150.00)
(b) Fair valuation adjustment of Preference shares (i) 43.04 43.04
(c) interest on Preference shares using recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) 0] (11.12) -
(d) Reversal of dividend on Preference shares recognised within equity (i 1.50 -
(e) Reversal of amortisation of goodwill (i) 31.00
(f) Amortisation of fair value gain on long-term/deferred payment liabilities (i) 4,52
(g) Interest on long-term / deferred payment liabilities recognised using EIR (i) (4.53)
(h) Depreciation on right-of-use assets (iv) (13.00)
(i) Interest on lease obligations (iv) (5.32)
(i) Reversal of rent expense (iv) 15.83 -
(k) Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments (v) (0.43) (0.43)
{I) Allowances for expected credit loss (wi) (43.03) (42.13)
(m) Tax effect of above items 75.44 23.84
1,965.41 1,519.44




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

(b) Reconciliation between Profit as per the audited standalone financial statements and Profit in accordance with the Ind AS standalone financial

statements prepared.

For the year
Notes ended

Profit as per the audited financial statements ar7.e9
(a) interest on Preference shares using recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) (i) 11.12)

(b) Recognition of tax on dividend on preference shares as other expense (M -
(c) Reversal of amortisation of goodwill (ii) 31.00
(d) Interest on long-term / deferred payment liabilities recognised using EIR (iii) (4.52)
(e) Amortisation of fair value gain on long-term/deferred payment liabilities (i) 4.52
() Depreciation on right-of-use assets (iv) (13.00)
(g) Interest on lease obligations (iv) (5.32)
(h) Reversal of rent expense (iv) 15.83
(i) Allowances for expecled credit loss (wi) (0.80)
() Remeasurement of defined benefits employee obligations recognised in OCI {wil) {1.12)
(k) Tax effect of above items 51.87
Profit as per the restated financial statements 445.13
() Remeasurement of defined benefits employee obligations recognised in OCI {vii) 1.12
(m) Tax effect of above items (0.28)
Total comprehensive income as per the restated financial statements 445.97

(c) R iliation beh the
financial information

t of cash flow as per the audited standalone financial statements and as per restated standalone

Previous GAAP Adji ents Ind AS
Net cash flow from operating activities (190.04) 74.68 (284.72)
Net cash flow from investing activities (86.62) (66.93) (19.69)
Net cash flow from financing activities 249.39 (7.75) 257.14
Net increase/ Decrease in cash & cash equivalents (27.27) - (27.27)

Notes

(i) 1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares

Under previous GAAP, Preference shares were always included as part of equity, however under Ind AS, there are criteria specified for
classification of Preference shares as equity, liability in totality or are bifurcated into equity or liability in case of compound or hybrid instrument. On
transition, the Company assessed Preference shares issued by the Company as liability and accordingly, the entire amount has been classified as
liability, Further, the Preference shares carried a below market rate of interest and accordingly the instrument was fair valued on the date of
transition which resulted in fair value gain. Fair value gains on the date of transition was directly recognised in equity. Subsequent to transition the
Preference shares are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (EIR).

The dividends paid on Preference shares under previous GAAP was recognised within equity, however under Ind AS, interest expense
determined using effective interest rate (EIR) is recorded in profit or loss and accordingly the amount recognised with equity is reversed.

Tax on dividend on Preference shares recognised within equity is reclassified and recognised as other expense in the profit or loss considering
the instrument being a liability.

(il) Amortisation of Goodwill
Under the previous GAAP, Goodwill arising on amalgamations were amortised over a period of five years, however under Ind AS, amortisation of

Goodwill is not allowed. It is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet date.

The amount recognised as amortisation of goodwill is reversed. The Company has reassessed the goodwill for impairment and is believes that
there is no impairment either on transition or at the end of each balance sheet date.

{iii) Long-term / deferred payment liabilities

Under previous GAAP, long-term liabilities were initially recognised at the transaction prices, however under Ind AS the same is initially
recognised at fair value adjusted for transaction cost and subsequently measured at amortised costs. On application of Ind AS these liabilities
were fair valued on the transition date and the fair value gain being recognised over the period of obligation. Subsequent to transition, these
liabilities are carried at amortised using effective interest rate method (EIR), accordingly interest expense determined using EIR are recognised in
the profit or loss.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 40: Corporate social responsibility

Amount required to be spent during the year
Amount approved by the board to be spent during the period
Amount spent during the period on:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(i) On purposes other than (i) above
Amaunt of expenditure incurred
Shortfall at the end of the period
Total of previous year's shortfall
Cumulative Shertfall
Nature of CSR activities
Activities specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013
Details of related party transactions

{Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

9.64 7.44

9.64 7.44

= 3.83

11.58 1.10

11.58 4.93

9.61 2.51

- 9.04

9.61 11.55

11.58 493

The Company has spent the entire amount of previcus year's shortfall till March 31, 2022 and is in the process of identifying the projects for

spending the amount shown as cumulative shortfall at the year end.

Note 41: Undisclosed Income

The Company did not have any undisclosed income in any of the years which was surrendered / disclosed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 42: Details of benami property

The Company do not have any benami property held in its name and there have been no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made

thereunder.

Note 43: Analytical Ratios

As at As at

Ratios March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 % Change Ramarks

Current Ratio 1.81 1.68 7.53%

Debt-equity ratio 0.56 0.69 -18.20%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio M 3.08 -31.02% Due to repayment of
preference shares

Return on investment 0.08 0.04 71.20% Due to changes on the
weighted average period
of holding of investments

Return on Equity Ratio 1.55 113 37.31% Due to higher revenue
from operation

Inventory turnover ratio N/A N/A N/A

Trade Receivables turnover ratio 522 5.06 3.16%

Trade payables turnover ratio 17.92 11.32 58.28% Due to higher
operational expenses

Net capital turnover ratio B.B2 B.65 1.97%

Net profit ratio 0.04 0.04 3.63%

Return on Capital employed 0.34 0.30 14.14%




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

(iv) Leases
Under previous GAAP, lease rentals were required to be recognised as expenses in the year of accrual. On transition, the Company recognised a
lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments and the Company has applied modified retrospective approach with

ROU asset equal to lease liability.

On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted using the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2020.

In adopting Ind AS 116, the Company has applied the below practical expedients available in Ind AS 101:

(i) Accounting for leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at April 1, 2020 as short term lease;
(ii) Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains option to extend or terminate the lease;
(iiyThe Company has not re-assessed whether a contract is or contains a lease at the date of initial application;

(iv) Initial direct costs are excluded from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

The principal portion of the lease payments have been disclosed under cash flow from financing activities.

{v) Equity Instruments

Under the Previous GAAP, long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for diminution in the value of investments, if any. Under Ind
AS, investment in equity instruments are carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) unless the entity has elected the irevocable option
to designate the same as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The Company has elected the irrevocable option to designate
the investment in equity instruments as FVOCI and accordingly, the fair value changes have been recognised within equity.

(vi) Allowances for expected credit losses

Under previous GAAP, the Company provides for provision based on the pre-determined policy which was on the ageing of the debtors. Under Ind
AS, the Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued
through profit or loss.

(vii) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in other comprehensive income. Under previous GAAP, the
Company recognised such remeasurements in profit or loss. However, this has no impact on the total comprehensive income and total equity as
on April 1, 2020 or as on March 31, 2021. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

Note 47: Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The group has not traded or invested in Cropto currency or Virtual Currency durign the financial year.

Note 48: Reclassification
Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged! reclassified wherever necessary. Further, there are no material regroupings/ reclassifications
during the year.

Note 48: Approval of financial statements
The standalone financial statements has been approved for issue by the resolution of the board of directors dated August 31, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L
For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES e < d g‘ﬂ— * -

Chartered Accountants Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Firm Registration Mumber : 316071E Manjaging Director Whole time Director
DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232
¥ o= Hacho
A W o
K- A P truand - §

Il o Dinesh Mantri Sapna Kochar

J.K. PANDYA Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary

Partner Membership Number; A56298

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Western Carriers (India) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Western
Carriers (India) Limited (‘the Company”), which includes its subsidiary (the
Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) and its
associates comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income,
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statements”)

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate
financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiary and
associates, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its
associates as at March 31, 2022, their consolidated profit including other
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the
consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of
the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

4. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report
but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial
Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of
other auditors as furnished to us (refer “Other matter”), we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of the
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for the safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its associates and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

6. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do

SO. T
P 3 N
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Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of
its associates are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of
the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the auditevidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its
associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclc_)_sures, and whether
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10.

the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group and its
associates of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial
information we have audited, to express an opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company
and such other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

14 1

12,

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial
statements and other financial information in respect of one subsidiary which reflect
total assets of Rs. 71.88 Million as at March 31, 2022, and total revenues of Rs.
0.29 Million and net cash inflow of Rs. 0.34 Million for the year ended on that date
and the financial statements and other financial information of three associates
which reflects Group’s share of net profit after tax of Rs. 0.07 Million for the year
ended March 31, 2022, which have been audited by other auditors.

The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31,2021 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2020 included in these
consolidated financial statements (prepared in accordance with Ind AS) are based on
the previously issued statutory financial statements for the years ended March 31,
2021 and March 31, 2020 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended), which were audited by us, on which we
expressed an unmodified opinion dated November03, 2021, and October29, 2020
respectively. The adjustments to these consolidated financial statements (prepared
in accordance with Ind AS)for the differences in accounting principles adopted by
the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

13.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in

the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

14.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and
the other financial information of the one subsidiary and three associates, as noted
in the ‘other matters’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We / the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of the
other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including the Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose
of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who
are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary and associates,
none of the directors of the Group’s companies, its associates, incorporated in
India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary and associates, incorporated in India,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022
has been paid/ provided by the Holding Company in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

As reported by the auditors of the subsidiary and associates (referred to in the
“«Other Matters Paragraph”) the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
of the Act is not applicable to the said subsidiary and associates.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information ;gnd«aecord-ing& the
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explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the

other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial

information of the subsidiary, associates, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’
paragraph:

I. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on its consolidated financial position of the Group and its
associates in its Consolidated Financial Statements - Refer Note 32 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements;

II. The Group and its associates did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

III. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group and its associates.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

Tk of

J.K. Pandya
(Partner)
Membership Number: 052673

Kolkata, August 31, 2022
UDIN: 22052678AQLQKF8585
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Western Carriers (India)
Limited

Refer to the paragraph 14(f) of the independent auditor’s report of event date to the
members of Western Carriers (India) Limited on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls related to Consolidated Financial
Statement under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

1:

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Western
Carriers (India) Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of
Western Carriers (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”)
and its subsidiaries and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India,
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary and its
associates, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company, its subsidiary
and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, internal financial
controls with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements was

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matenal

respects.
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4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained
by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements are a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements may become inadequate beeause-of changes in
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conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors, as referred to
in Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding Company, its subsidiary and its
associates, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

Other Matters

9. Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to separate
financial statement of one subsidiary and three associates, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
subsidiaries and associates incorporated in India.

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

J.K. Pandya Slaite 3 Accoutiss®
(Partner)
Membership Number: 052678

\\.

Y,

Kolkata, August 31, 2022
UDIN:; 22052678AQLQKF8585
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Western Carriers (India) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following companies
incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have unfavorable
remarks, qualifications or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in their reports under
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Holding Clause number of the
Name of the Company/ CARO report which

entities Subsidiary/  is unfavorable or
Associate qualified or adverse

Western Carriers Holding
1 | (India) Limited | U63090WB2011PLC161111 | Company Clause (xx)(a)

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 31607 1E

C{.K.FW

J.K. Pandya
(Partner)
Membership Number: 052678

Kolkata, August 31, 2022
UDIN: 22052678AQLQKF8585



WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(1) Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work in progress
(c) Right of use assets
(d) Goodwill
(e) Other Intangible assets
(f) Equity accounted investments
(g) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Other financial assets
(h) Deferred tax assets (Net)
(i) Other non-current assets
() Income-tax Assets (Net)
Total Non-current assets
(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other bank balances
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
(b) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total Assets
() Equity and Liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent
Non-controlling Interest
Total equity
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Long-term provisions
Total Non-current liabilities
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b) Shori-term provisions
(c) Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

This is the consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E

q 4«?%

J.K. PANDYA

Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
4 363.41 362.60 362.11

4 94.81 6.20 -
5 37.41 52.86 56.87
6 310.00 310.00 310.00
6 1.45 1.68 1.23
T 32.07 21.00 20.93
8 7.47 747 747
9 256.91 273.92 315.91
10 27.06 25.21 23.84
11 5.00 14.45 11.91
12 49.56 17.01 2797
1,185.15 1,092.40 1,138.24
13 3,113.89 2,523.52 1,865.54
14 25.45 34.30 61.50
15 107.25 74.75 31.97
16 163.49 280.67 348.38
9 55.84 51.79 42,63
11 252.22 194.72 96.97
3,718.14 3,159.75 2,446.99
4,903.29 4,252.15 3,585.23
17 393.50 393.50 393.50
18 2,180.26 1,570.90 1,124.79
2,573.76 1,964.40 1,518.29
2.06 2.06 2.05
2,575.82 1,966.46 1,520.34
19 208.15 352.49 212,45
5 25.88 40.25 46.36
20 - - 45.23
21 22.04 14.67 11.91
256.07 407.41 315.95
19 1,295.81 1,004.34 748.74
5 15.24 15.10 10.51

22
649.50 779.31 917.54
20 61.02 39.48 26.42
21 268 227 2.67
23 47.15 37.78 43.06
2,071.40 1,878.28 1,748.94
4,903.29 4,252.15 3,585.23
1-51

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra Sethia
Mangging Director
DIN: 00267974

2) ] i aniv

Dinesh Mantri

Chief Financial Officer

=t

| i s S et

Kanishka Sethia
Whole time Director
DIN: 00267232

Sapna Kochar
Company Secretary

Membership Number; A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Hiotie For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(1) Revenue from operations 24 14,708.75 11,101.12
(2) Other income 25 49.14 37.85
(3) Total Income (1) +(2) 14,757.89 11,138.97
(4) Expenses
(a) Operational expenses 26 12,804.09 9,607.17
(b) Employee benefits expense 27 370.37 277.14
(c) Finance costs 28 139.20 129.97
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 116.00 115.92
(e) Other expenses 30 494,63 408.55
Total Expenses (4) 13,924.29 10,538.75
(5) Profit before tax and share of profits or loss of associates (3) - (4) 833.60 600.22
(6) Share of profit of associates 0.07 0.07
(7) Profit before tax (5) - (6) 833.67 600.29
(8) Tax Expense
(a) Current tax 10
(i) Current tax for current year 223.58 154.18
(ii) Current tax for the earlier years - 2.48
(b) Deferred tax 10
(i) Deferred tax for current year (1.20) (1.65)
Total tax expense (8) 222.38 155.01
(9) Profit for the year (7) - (8) 611.29 445.28
(10) Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of the employees defined benefit plans (2.58) 1.12
(i) Income tax relating to above items 0.65 (0.28)
Total other comprehensive income (10) (1.93) 0.84
(11) Total comprehensive income for the year (9 + 10) 609.36 446.12
Profits attributable to
Owners of the Parent 611.29 44527
Non-controlling Interests - 0.01
611.29 445.28
Other Comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the Parent (1.93) 0.84
Non-controlling Interests - -
(1.93) 0.84
Total Comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the Parent 609.36 446.11
Non-controlling Interests - 0.01
609.36 446.12
(12) Earnings per equity share (Face value of share of Rs. 10 each) 31
Basic earnings per share 15.53 11.32
Diluted earnings per share 15.53 11.32
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 1-51
This is the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For JAl PANDYA & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E / -/" 4 S L
/ A Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
1 P B I : Managing Director Whole time Director
J K ¢ m’lf\i?ﬁ 4/ DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232
blnumﬂh 50‘"0' I*Lmﬁ‘m
J.K. PANDYA Dinesh Mantri Sapna Kochar
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership Number: 52678 Membership Number: A56298

Kolkata, August 31, 2022
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WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

a. Equity Share Capital

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notes Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2020 17 393.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 17 393.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year o
Balance as at March 31, 2022 17 393.50
b. Other Equity Attributable to the owners of the Parent
Reserves & Surplus "
> 4 Non Total Other
Notes Capital Remeasurment |FVOCI Equity contrlolling
Retained a I Total |™ Equity
Eamings | Redemption | of employee nstruments nterest
antng Reserve defined benefits
Balance as at April 1, 2020 1,125.58 - (0.47) (0.32)| 1,124.79 (0.05)| 1,101.92
Profit for the year 18 445.27 - - - 445,27 0.01 445,28
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 18 - - 0.84 - 0.84 - 0.84
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,570.85 - 0.37 (0.32)| 1,570.90 (0.04)] 1,548.04
Profit for the year 611.29 - - - 611.29 - 611.29
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - (1.93) - (1.93) - {1.93)
Transfer to capital redemption reserve 18 (150.00) 150.00 - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,032.14 150.00 (1.56) (0.32)| 2,180.26 (0.04)| 2,157.40
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 1-51

This is the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E

(\T‘K«Pﬂmﬂ'«&ﬁ

J.K. PANDYA

Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022

32("4«14’]»»

Dinesh Mantri
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FEEE éﬁmﬁ;-

— Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
/ Marjaging Director Whole time Director
DIN: 00267974 DIN: 00267232

S Yoo

apna Kochar
Company Secretary
e Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for year ended March 31, 2022

- (A) Cash flows from operating activities :

Net Profit before taxes
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Loss on sale of assels
Loss on redemption of preference shares
Allowance for doubtful debts
Interest Income
Share of profit / (loss) of associates

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other non-current financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in long-term provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other current financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in short-term provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Direct Taxes Paid

Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities

(B

Cash flows from investing activities :
Payments for acquisition of Property, plant and equipments
Payments for acquisition of Intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipments
Loans given / repaid (net)
Interest Received
Acquisition of investment in associate
Term deposits (placed) / matured (net)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities

(c

Cash flows from financing activities :
Proceeds from Long-term borrowings
Repayment of Long-term borrowings
Repayment of preference shares
Proceeds from / (repayment) of short-term borrowings
Principal lease payments
Interest paid on lease obligations
Payment of interest on Preference Shares
Other interest payments
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and Cash equivalents

Particulars

Cash in hand
Balances with bank in current accounts

Total

Notes:

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
833.67 600.29
116.00 115.92
139.20 129.97
- 0.19
23.49 -
1.07 0.90
(35.07) (23.64)
{0.07) (0.07)
1,078.29 823.56
0.03 -
(591.44) (658.88)
(4.05) (9.16)
(57.50) (97.75)
" (49.75)
4.79 3.88
(129.81) (138.23)
(2.09) 13.06
0.41 (0.40)
9.37 (5.28)|
308.00 (118.95)
(256.13) (145.70)
51.87 (264.65)
(155.49) (112.41)
(0.30) (0.88)
- 0.50
117.18 67.71
35.07 23.64
(11.00) -
(15.52) (0.79)
(30.06) (22.23)
76.11 23437
(103.38) (80.37)
(150.00) >
290.98 232.02
(15.10) (10.52)
(4.73) (5.32)
(1.50) (1.50)
(123.04) (109.00)
(30.66) 259.68
(8.85) (27.20)
34.30 61.50
25.45 34.30
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6.04 7.53
19.41 26.77
25.45 34.30

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method which prescribed under Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows.

Refer to note 36 for disclosure related to paragraph 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of cash flows under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

(as amended)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

This is the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E

Partner
Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

r‘_’?/_‘

Rajendra Sethia
Mapaging Director
DIN: 00267974

“/‘ % iuuqu*'ﬂ
inesh Mantri

Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00267232 Q

Kanishka Sethia
Whole time Director

apna Kochar
Company Secretary

Membership Number: A56298




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

1

21

2.2

2.3

24

General Information

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Western Carriers (India) Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in India under
the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is located at 206, Central Plaza, 2/6,
Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata, West Bengal-700020.

The Group is a major player in the Indian logistics industry and engaged in providing freight and other transportation services,
warehousing contracts ranging from a few months to a few years. Certain accessorial services are also being provided to its
customers under their transportation contracts, such as unloading and other incidental services.

The Group has a subsidiary named Western Skyvilla Private Limited and three associates named Success Suppliers Private
Limited, SMP Properties Private Limited and F M Carriers Private Limited respectively. The Company and its subsidiary is together
referred to as the Group.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements comply with all material aspect of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rule, 2015] and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The consolidated financial statements is upto year ended March 31, 2021 were prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These consolidated financial statements are the first consolidated financial statements for the Group under the Ind AS. Refer Note
46 for an explanation on the transition from the previous GAAP to Ind AS and its effect on the Group's financial position, financial
performance and cash flows.

Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Group’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest Millions upto two decimal, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities

which are measured at fair values.

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying value of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the consolidated financial statements, which may cause material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are provided below:

(a) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — useful lives
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of
periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value
at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the Group's assets are determined by the Management at the time
the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at the end of each reporting period. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets.

(b) Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Lease classification, termination and renewal option of leases

Ind AS 116, Leases requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that the Group will
continue the lease beyond non-cancellable period and whether any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised.
In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the
lease term, costs relating to the terminating the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Group's operations taking in
to account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future
economic conditions, the Group has concluded that no material changes are required to lease period relating to the existing
lease contracts.

(c

—




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
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3.1

(d) Impairment of Goodwill
The Group estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering current
economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and
regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Refer Note 6 for additional details.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-

financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Group regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values, then the Group
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind
AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used
to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement. The Group recognises transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of Consolidation

(a) Subsidiary
Subsidiary is entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial
statements of subsidiary is included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until
the date on which control ceases.

(b) Equity accounted investees
The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in associates.

When the Group has significant influence over the other entity, it considers such interests as associates. Significant influence is
the power to pariicipate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the entity but is not control or joint control over the
entity.

The results, assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using equity method of
accounting after making necessary adjustments to achieve uniformity in application of accounting policies, wherever applicable.

An investment in associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. Gain or loss in respect of changes in other equity of associates resulting in
divestment or dilution of stake in the associates is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

On acquisition of investment in a associate, any excess of cost of investment over the fair value of the assets and liabilities of
the associate, is recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying value of the investment in the associate. The excess of
fair value of assets and liabilites over the investment is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve. The unrealised
profits/losses on transactions with associates are eliminated by reducing the carrying amount of investment. The carrying
amount of investment in associates is reduced to recognise impairment, if any, when there is evidence of impairment.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

3.2

3.3

(c) Obtaining control over existing investment

The difference between the fair value of the initial interest as at the date of obtaining control and its book value has been
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(d) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains and losses arising from intra-Group transactions, are
eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is classified current when it is:
(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
(b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified current when:
(a) Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
(b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Financial instruments

(a)

(b)

Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or Fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI’)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI') if it meets both of the following

conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and cash flows

from sales; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Equity instruments are always classified fair value through profit and loss, except in cases where the Group has elected an
irrevocable option of designating the same as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL :
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost:

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced
by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI :
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income i.e., subsequent changes in fair
value of the instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income. Any dividend received on such instruments are

recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit
or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets:

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities:

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income.

The Group recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For financial assets (apart from trade receivables that do not constitute of financing transaction) whose credit risk has not
significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognised.
Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk of the financial asset has significantly
increased since initial recognition.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

.
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3.4

3.5

3.6

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. Such revenue is recognised
upon the Group's performance of its contractual obligations and on satisfying all the following conditions:

(1) Parties to the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform their respective obligations;

(2) Such contract has specified the respective rights and obligations of the parties in connection with the transfer of goods or
rendering of services (hereinafter the “Transfer”);

(3) Such contract contains specific payment terms in relation to the Transfer;

(4) Such contract has a commercial nature, namely, it will change the risk, time distribution or amount of the Group’s future cash
flow;

(5) The Group is likely to recover the consideration it is entitled to for the Transfer to customers.

Revenue is recognised when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration. The amount recognised
as revenue is exclusive of all indirect taxes and net of returns and discounts.

(a) Rendering of services

The Group generates revenue from services to its customers such as providing freight and other transportation services,
warehousing contracts ranging from a few months to a few years. Certain accessorial services may be provided to customers
under their transportation contracts, such as unloading and other incidental services. The Group’s performance obligations are
satisfied over time as customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits of the Group’s services. The contracts
contain a single performance obligation, as the distinct services provided remain substantially the same over time and possess
the same pattern of transfer. The transaction price is based on the consideration specified in the contract with the customer and
contains fixed and variable consideration. In general, the fixed component of a contract represents amounts for facility and
equipment costs incurred to satisfy the performance obligation and is recognized over the term of the contract.

In the case of transportation services, performance obligation is created when a customer under a transportation contract
submits a shipment note for the transport of goods from origin to destination. These performance obligations are satisfied over
the period as the shipments move from origin to destination and revenue is recognized proportionally as a shipment moves and
the related costs are recognized as incurred. Performance obligations are short-term, with transit days less than one week.
Generally, customers are billed upon completion of shipment, and remit payment according to approved payment terms. The
Group recognizes revenue on a net basis when the Group does not control the specific services.

(b) Contract balances
Contract assets
A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from inspection services because the receipt of consideration is
conditional on successful completion of the inspection. Upon completion of the inspection, the amount recognised as contract

assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional is due from the customer (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies for financial assets for initial and
subsequent measurements.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as
income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Income Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
countries where the Group or companies within the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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3.7

3.8

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority.

Foreign currencies
ltems included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The Group's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the

Company's or Parent Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group in its functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction

first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at
the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss unless they
relates to the qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions.

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the

date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of advance consideration.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of Property, plant and equipment includes the costs directly attributable to the acquisition or constructions of assets, or
replacing parts of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with them will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can measured reliably. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Advance given for acquisition / construction of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets are presented as "Capital
Advance" under Other Non Current Assets.

The assets in the process of construction or acquisition but not ready for management's intended use are included under Capital
Work in progress.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

3.9

Depreciation is provided on written down value method in the manner and on the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on addition / deduction is calculated pro-rata from/to the month of addition / deduction.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The estimated useful lives of the assets considered by the Company is stated hereunder:

Assets Description vasinLLite by
Years
Office Building 60
Heavy Equipments 15
Heavy Vehicles 6
Office Appliances 5
Computer 3
Other Machinery 15
Motor Cycle,Scooter 10
Motor Vehicles 8
Furniture 10
Electrical Equipments 10

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use

the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments.

The Group's lease obligations are presented on the face of the Balance Sheet.
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3.10

31

3.12

3.13

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of
assets that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified

as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial

period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life (5 years for computer software) and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying value of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if
any. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. An
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee related liabilities under other financial liabilities in balance sheet.

Post - employment benefits

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually at
year end by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets. This cost is included in 'Employee Benefits Expense' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. These are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plan

The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident fund as per local regulations. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans
and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year
(i) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity

as reduction, net of tax from the proceeds.

Cash dividend

The Group recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the
discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws of India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
('CODM').The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and has been
identified as the Board of Directors of the Group.
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Note 4: Property, plant and equipment

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Office Heavy Heavy Office Motor Other . Electrical
Building | Equipment | Vehicles | Appliances Computer Vehicles Machinery Fumbure Equipment i
Cost
Balance at April 1, 2020 - 302.36 777.66 10.48 6.68 34.82 15.66 16.57 4.73 1,168.96
Additions - 51.60 42.51 0.65 1.59 1.89 4.47 0.35 0.61 103.67
Disposals - - - - - (2.03) - - - (2.03)
Balance at March 31, 2021 - 353.96 820.17 11.13 8.27 34.68 20.13 16.92 5.34 1,270.60
Additions 1.92 27.51 8.47 0.79 1.50 3.73 55.07 0.63 0.34 99.96
Disposals - - - = & - s i * =
Balance at March 31, 2022 1.92 381.47 828.64 11.92 9.77 38.41 75.20 17.55 5.68 1,370.56
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at April 1, 2020 - 134.70 620.36 8.31 4.99 22,84 3.32 10.16 247 806.85
Depreciation expense - 34,69 56.63 1.01 1.40 3.67 2.70 1.69 0.70 102.49
Disposals - - - - - (1.34) - - - (1.34)
Balance at March 31, 2021 - 169.39 676.99 9.32 6.39 25.17 6.02 11.85 2.87 908.00
Depreciation expense 0.06 36.41 49.76 0.82 1.49 3.33 5.22 1.38 0.68 99.15
Disposals - - - - - - - - = -
Balance at March 31, 2022 0.06 205.80 726.75 10.14 7.88 28.50 11.24 13.23 3.55 1,007.15
Carrying amount
Balance at April 1, 2020 - 167.66 157.30 217 1.69 11.98 1234 6.41 2.56 362.11
Balance at March 31, 2021 - 184.57 143.18 1.81 1.88 9.51 14.11 5.07 2.47 362.60
Balance at March 31, 2022 1.86 175.67 101.89 1.78 1.89 9.91 63.96 4.32 213 363.41

Note:

(a) The Company has chosen to apply Ind AS retrospectively to determine the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment as on the date of transition i.e. April 1, 2020.

(b) Refer Note 19 for details of security against borrowings.

Movement in Capital work in progress and its age analysis

(i) Movement in Capital work in progress

g FY FY FY
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Balance at the beginning of the year 6.20 - -
Additions during the year 94.81 6.20 -
Capitalised during the year (6.20) - -
Balance at the end of the year 94.81 6.20 -
(ii) Age analysis of Capital work in progress

As at March 31, 2022
Particul,
SR LRSS 1to 2years | 2to 3 years Nt thancy Total
1 year years
Heavy Vehicles 23.64 - - - 23.64
Property 7117 - - - 71.17
As at March 31, 2021
Particul
i Le:s than 1to 2 years | 2to 3 years Mo a3 Total
year years
Heavy Vehicles 6.20 - - - 6.20
Property - - - . -
As at April 1, 2020
Particul.
el LO:S S 1to 2years | 2to 3years WopR than s Total
year years
Heavy Vehicles - - - - -
Property - - - - -
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Note 5: Right of use assets

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

The Company has taken on lease various offices, warehouses other spaces for its uses. Rental contracts typically range from 1 year to 10 years.

A. The changes in the carrying value of Right of Use assets :

Particulars Buildings
Gross Block

Balance as at April 1, 2020 56.87
Additions during the year 8.99
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year =2
Balance as at March 31, 2021 65.86
Additions during the year 0.87
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 66.73

Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2020 =

Charge for the year 13.00
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 13.00
Charge for the year 16.32
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 29,32
Carrying amount

Net carrying amount as at April 1, 2020 56.87
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 52.86
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 37.41

The aggregate depreciation expense on RoU assets is included under depreciation expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

B Movement in lease liabilities :

Particulars Lease Obligations
Balance as at April 1, 2020 56.87
Additions during the year 8.99
Deletions during the year =
Finance cost accrued during the year 5.32
Payment of lease labilities (15.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 55.35
Additions during the year 0.87
Deletions during the year -
Interest on lease obligation 4.73
Payment of lease labilities (19.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 41.12

C The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at the year end:

Particulars A9 As at _As -

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Current 15.24 15.10 10.51
Non-current 25.88 40.25 46.36
Total 41.12 55.35 56.87




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as a
right of use asset and a lease liability. Payments made for short term leases and leases of low-value are expensed on a straight line basis over the

lease term.

D The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at the year end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

Particulars

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
18.46 19.83 15.83
29.18 47 .64 65.67
. - 1.80
47.64 67.47 83.30

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk regards to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligation related to

the lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

E The amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Particulars

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Rent expense - short-term lease and leases of low value assets
Total

F Extension and termination options

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

16.32 13.00

4.73 532
26.60 32.86
47.65 51.18

Extension and termination options are included in various leases. These are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Company's operations. The majority of the extension and termination options held are exercisable by the Company and not by the

respective lessor.
G Discounting rate

The Company has used the incremental borrowing rate of 10% (FY 2020-21: 10% and as on the date of transition i.e. April 1, 2020: 10%) to

determine the lease liabilities.

i
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Note 6: Goodwill and other intangible assets

Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill Trademark* Computer
Software Tt
Cost/ Deemed cost
Balance at April 1, 2020 310.00 - 2.04 2.04
Additions - - 0.e8 0.88
Disposals = = = -
Balance at March 31, 2021 310.00 - 2.92 2.92
Additions - - 0.30 0.30
Disposals d - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 310.00 - 3.22 3.22
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at April 1, 2020 - - 0.81 0.81
Amortisation expense - - 0.43 0.43
Disposals - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 - - 1.24 1.24
Amortisation expense - - 0.53 0.53
Disposals = - . -
Balance at March 31, 2022 - - 1.77 1.77
Carrying amount
Balance at April 1, 2020 310.00 - 1.23 1.23
Balance at March 31, 2021 310.00 - 1.68 1.68 |
Balance at March 31, 2022 310.00 - 1.45 1.45
* below the rounding off amount
Note:
The Group had the g ill for i and based on such was d y. The ill is to purchase of the business

from M/s Western Carriers, erstwhile pmpnelnrsmp firm owned by Mr. Rajendra Sethia. The goodwill was tested for impam'nent as of the year ended March 31, 2022, and basis that the
recoverable amount was determined to be higher than the carrying amount of goodwill. The Group's profit for the current year exceeding the carrying amount of goodwill indicates
recoverability of the same as at the year end.

Note 7: Equity accounted investments

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
In associates
Success Suppliers Private Limited 17.00 17.00 17.00
1.700,000 (As at March 31, 2021 - 1,700,000 and As at April 1, 2020 - 1,700,000) equity shares cof Rs. 10 each, fully paid up;
Less: Share of loss (0.55) (0.62) (0.68)
(Inciudes Goodwill amounting to Rs. 3.81 Millions, As at March 31, 2021: Rs. 3.81 Millions and As at April 1, 2020 Rs. 3.81
Millions) 16.45 16.38 16.32
SMP Properties Private Limited 4.82 4.82 4.82
1,515 (As at March 31, 2021 - 1,515 and As at April 1, 2020 - 1,515) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up;
Less: Share of loss (0.20) (0.20) (0.21)
(Includes Goodwill amounting to Rs. 4.65 Millions, As at March 31, 2021: Rs. 4.65 Millions and As at April 1, 2020: Rs. 4.65 462 462 461
Millions) . : .
F M Carriers Private Limited
45,835 (As at March 31, 2021 - Nil and As at April 1, 2020 - Nil) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up; 11.00 - -
Less: Share of loss - - -
(Includes Goodwill amounting fo Rs. Nil, As at March 31, 2021: Nil and As at April 1, 2020: Nil) 11.00 - .
Total equity accounted Investments 32.07 21.00 20.93
Aggregate carrying of ung 32.07 21.00 20.93
Note 8: Investments
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
In Others
Investments designated at fair value through OCI
Western Apartment Private Limited 7.47 7.47 T.AT
790,000 (As at March 31, 2021 - 790,000 and As at April 1, 2020 - 790,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up;
Total Non-current investment 7.47 7.47 7.47
Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments 7.47 7.47 747

Note 9: Other financial assets

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

(i) Non current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits 9.04 9.07 9.07

(b) Fixed deposits maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date# 247.87 264.85 306.84
Total Other financial assets - non current 256.91 273.92 315.91
(ii) Current

(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits 55.84 51.79 42,63
Total Other financial assets - current 55.84 51.79 42.63

#Deposits balances in the account are not due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date are primarily placed as security with banks as collateral and margin money for
bank guarantee of Rs. 199.54 Millions (As at March 31, 2021: Rs. 219.33 Millions and As at April 1, 2020; Rs. 264.22 Millions).
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Note 10: Income Taxes
(a) Analysis of Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(i) Amount recognised in profit or loss
(a) Current tax for the current year
(b) Current tax for the earlier years
(c) Deferred tax for the current year

(ii) A t gnised in other p! income

(a) Deferred tax for the current year

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Accounting Profit before tax
AtIndia's statutory Income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2021: 25.168%)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductibl ble) in ing taxable income
Income tax expense reported

The Company, its subsidiary and asscciates has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws

(A d
[¢

nt) Act, 2019. A ingly, the Company, its subsidiary and associates have recognised provision for income tax
remeasured their deferred tax balances on the basis of the rate prescribed in the said section.

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
223.58 154.18
- 2.48
(1.20) (1.85)
222.38 155.01
0.65 (0.28)
0.65 (0.28)
223.03 154.73
833.67 600.29
209.82 151.08
12.56 3.93
222.38 155.01

for the year ended on March 31, 2022 enwards and

FY 2021-22
Deferred tax Deferred tax
Balance at expense/ expense/ .
beginning of (income) (income) of the year
the year recognised In recognised in
profit and loss ocl
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 9.38 0.69 - 8.70
Provisions for employee benefits 426 (1.31) (0.65) 6.22
Lease liabilities 13.93 3.58 - 10.35
Fair value changes of investments 0.11 - - 0.11
Allowance for credit losses 10.83 (0.27) - 11.10
Other financial liabilities = - -
Total deferred tax assets 38.51 2.69 (0.65) 36.48
Deferred tax liabilities
Right of Use Assets (13.30) (3.89) - (9.42)
Total deferred tax liabilities (13.30) (3.89) - (9.42)|
Net deferred tax assets 25.21 (1.20) {0.65) 27.08
FY 2020-21
Deferred tax Deferred tax
Balance at expense/ expense/ Balance at end
beginning of (income) (income) of the year
the year recognised in | recognised in
profit and loss ocl
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 9.45 0.07 - 9.38
Provisions for employee benefits 367 (0.87) 0.28 4.26
Lease liabilities 14.32 0.39 - 13.93
Fair value changes of investments 0.1 - - 0.11
Allowance for credit losses 10.60 (0.23) - 10.83
Total deferred tax assets 38.15 (0.64) 0.28 38.51
Deferred tax liabilities
Right of Use Assets (14.31) (1.01) s (13.30)
Total deferred tax liabilities (14.31) (1.01) E (13.30)
Net deferred tax assets 23.84 (1.65) 0.28 25.21
Note 11: Other Assets
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
(i) Non Current
(Unsecured, considered good, uniess staled otherwise)
(a) Capital Advances 5.00 14.45 11.91
Total Other non current assets 5.00 14.45 11.91
{ii) Current
(a) Advances to port authorities and other service providers 7.99 10.65 5.37
(b) GST receivables 103.21 80.74 37.78
(c) Advances to employees 25.29 19.03 11.33
(d) Other advances 115.73 84.30 42.51
Total Other current assets 252.22 194.72 96.57
Note 12: Income-tax Assets (Net)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Advance taxes (including tax deducted at sources)
[Net of provisions for taxes Rs. 223.58 Millions, As at March 31, 2021: Rs. 156,66 Millions and As at April 1, 2020: Rs. 158.20 4956 17.01 27.97
Millions)
Total income-tax assets (Net) 49.56 17.01 27.97
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Note 13: Trade receivables

(Amounts in Rs, Millions, unless stated otherwise)

(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise) As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | April 1, 2020
Trade receivables, unsecured, considered good 3,113.89 2,523.52 1.865.54
Trade receivables, having significant increase in credit risk = = E
Trade receivables, credit impaired 44.10 43.03 4213
3,157.99 2,566.55 1,907.67
Less: Aliowances for expected credit losses (44.10) (43.03) (42.13)
Total Trade receivables 3,113.89 2,523.52 1,865.54
D of I as per Ind AS 115 revenue from contract with customers
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31,2021 | April 1, 2020
Contract balances
Trade receivable - Billed 273141 237091 1,889.69
Trade receivable - Unbilled 420.58 185.64 17.98
Total Contract balances 3.157.99 2,566.55 1,907.67
There is no contracted liabilities (Advance from customers )
Ageing of trade receivables
As at March 31, 2022
Lessthan6 |6monthsto1 | 1yearto2
Age bracket Unbilled ol year years 2 years to 3 years | More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 420.58 2,637.44 44.38 6.66 2.53 2.58 3,114.17
L F trade recei - - - - - 2 ¥
Disputed trade receivables considered good - = - - - 43.82 43.82
Disputed trade cor btful - - - - - - -
Total Ageing of receivables 420.58 2,637.44 44.38 6.66 2.53 46.40 3,157.99
As at March 31, 2021
Lessthan6 | 6 months to 1 1yearto 2
Age bracket Unbilled g year \aars 2 years to 3 years | More than 3 years Total
Undisp trade ivables — idered good 195.64 2,286.39 32.16 483 1.83 1.88 2,522.73
Undisg trade hables —considered doubtful = - =) v . N ~
Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - - - 43.82 43.82
Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - - - . - &
Total Ageing of receivables 195.64 2,286.39 32.16 4.83 1.83 45.70 2,566.55
As at April 1, 2020
Lessthan6 | 6 months to 1 1yearto2
Age bracket Unbilled okihs year years 2 years to 3 years | More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 17.98 1.791.41 43.92 6.72 2.15 167 1,863.85
Undisputed trade receivables —considered doubtful - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - B 6.03 37.79 43.82
Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - - = - - -
Total Ageing of receivables 17.98 1,791.41 43.92 6.72 8.18 39.46 1,907.67
Note:
(a) The ageing has been determined from the date they were invoiced to the customers. Refer Note 37 on credit risk for more details.
(b) Movement in allowances for expected credit loss
For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Allowances for expected credit losses at the beginning of the year 43.03 4213
Allowances created during the year [Refer note 30)] 1.07 0.90
Allowances utilised / reversed during the year = -
Allowances for expected credit losses at the end of the year 44.10 43.03
Note 14: Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Cash in hand 6.04 7.53 537
Balances with bank in current accounts 19.41 26.77 51.49
Balances with bank in deposit accounts® - - 4.64
Total cash and cash equivalents 25.45 34.30 61.50
*Original maturity of less than three months
Note 15: Other bank balances
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Balances with bank in deposit accounts# 107.25 74.75 31.97
Total other bank balances 107.25 T4.75 31.97

#Deposits balances in the account are due for realisation within 12 months from the balance sheet date, but original maturity of more than three months are primarily placed as security
with banks as collateral and margin money for bank guarantee of Rs. 103.98 Millions (As at March 31, 2021: Rs 74.75 Millions and As at April 1, 2020: Rs 31.95 Millions).

Note 16: Loans

(i) Current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)
(a) Loans to body corporates and others

Total loan - current

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
163.49 280.67 348.38
163.49 280.67 348,38
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Information relating to Loans granted to related parties repayable on demand

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanding 120.67 267.26 293.47
Percentage to the total Loans and Advances in the nature of loans 73.81% 95.22% 84.24%

Note 16.1

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding (whether recerded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons/ entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘ultimate beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 16.2

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding party”) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party
(ultimate beneficiaries); or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Note 16.3
There are no outstanding loans/advances in nature of loan from promoters, key management personnel or other officers of the parent Company.

Note 16.4

The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Note 17: Equity share capital

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Authorised share capital

45,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 450.00 450.00 450,00
(As at March 31, 2021: 45,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
(As at April 1, 2020: 45,000,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each)

15,000,000 Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each# 150.00 150.00 150.00
(As at March 31, 2021: 15,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)
(As at April 1, 2020: 15,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

Total authorised share capital 600.00 600.00 600.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
39,349,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 393.50 393.50 393.50

(As at March 31, 2021: 39,349,700 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up)
(As at April 1, 2020: 39,349,700 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up)
Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 393,50 393.50 393,50

# Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares has been issued, subscribed and fully paid up, however are classified as financial liabilities. Refer Note 19 for
additional details.

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,93,49,700 393.50 3,93,49,700 393.50
Changes during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 3,93,49,700 393.50 3,93,49,700 393.50
(b) Details of equity shares held by the promoters at the year end
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
310 Name No. of shares* %age holding No. of shares* %age holding No. of shares* %age holding
1 Rajendra Sethia 3,93.45,100 99.99% 3,93.45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99%
3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99%

* There are no changes in the promoters shareholding as at the end of any of the years presented.

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares issued by the Company

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after the payment of all the preferential amounts.

(d) Details of equity shares held by equity shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
No. of shares %age holding No. of shares S%age holding No. of shares %age holding
Rajendra Sethia 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99%
3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99% 3,93,45,100 99.99%
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Note 18: Other equity
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Retained earnings 2,032.14 1,570.85 1,125.58
Remeasurement of employee defined benefits (1.56) 0.37 (0.47)
FVOCI -Equity investments (0.32) (0.32) (0.32)
Capital redemption reserve 150.00 - S
2,180.26 1,570.90 1,124.79
Retained Earnings
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,570.85 1,125.58
Profit for the year 611.29 44527
Transfer to capital redemption reserve (150.00) -
Balance at the end of the year 2,032.14 1,570.85
Remeasurement of employee defined benefits
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.37 (0.47)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (1.93) 0.84
(1.56) 0.37
FVOCI - Equity Instruments
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.32) (0.32)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
(0.32) (0.32)

(a) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to reserves, dividends or olher distributions paid to shareholders. Retained

earnings is a free reserve available to the Group.

(b) Remeasurement of employee defined benefits

Remeasurement of employee defined benefits represents re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss.

(¢) FVOCI equity investments

The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated
within the FVOCI equity investments reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are
derecognised.

(d) Capital redemption reserve

The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Companies Act’) requires that where a company redeem it's preference shares out of free reserves or securities premium, a sum equal to
the nominal value of the preference shares so redeemed shall be transferred to a capital redemption reserve account and details of such transfer shall be disclosed in the
balance sheet. The capital redemption reserve account may be applied by the Group, in paying up unissued shares of the Group to be issued to shareholders of the
Group as fully paid bonus shares.
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Note 19: Borrowings
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
A. Non-current
(a) Secured borrowings
Term loans from banks
(i) Vehicles Finance 71.87 165.77 183.97
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (57.12) (93.90) (78.48)
14.75 71.87 105.49
(ii) Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines (GECL) 199.54 172.20 -
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (43.74) (8.16) -
155.80 164.04 -
(iii) Housing loan 39.28 - -
Less: Current maturilies of long-term borrowings (1.69) - -
37.60 - -
(b) Unsecured borrowings
1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares - 116.58 106.96
Total Long-term borrowings 208.15 352.49 212.45
B. Current
(a) Secured borrowings
(i) Loans repayable on demand from banks
- Cash Credits 1,156.97 893.22 663.97
- Overdraft 15.80 - -
(ii) Current maturities of long-term borrowings
- Vehicles Finance 57.12 93.90 78.48
- Guaranteed Emergency Credit Lines 43.74 8.16 -
- Housing loan 1.69 - -
(b) Unsecured borrowings
- From Bedy Corporale - Related party 6.65 - -
- From Directors and their relatives 7.10 2.84 0.29
- From Others 6.74 6.22 6.00
Total Short-term borrowings 1,295.81 1,004.34 748.74
Total borrowings 1,503.96 1,356.83 961.19 |
(a) Term loans from banks
(i) Vehicle Finance
The above loans are secured by hypothecation of Vehicle/Equipment purchased out of the above Loan.
Amount Amount Amount
Total No. of § outstanding ststanding it ding
i Earliest Start Date Maturity Rate of Interest Avut hat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
April 5, 2021 -
Fi - s -9 3 g e
HDFC Bank 23-48 May §, 2017 February 15, 2024 7.40% - 9.05% 39.94 67.93 14.21
‘ July 15, 2021 - .
Kotak Mahindra 36-47 July 15, 2018 December 22, 2022 8.70% - 9.15% 31.93 97.84 169.76

(ii) Guaranteed Emergency Credit
Lines (GECL)

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

The above loans are 100% guaranteed by National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company along with secured by hypothecation by way of Second Charge on book debts and collaterally
secured by movable properties of the Company and immovable properties cwned by Mr. Rajendra Sethia and personally guaranteed by Mr. Kanishka Sethia and Mr. Rajendra Sethia,

Director of the Company.

HDFC Bank

Kotak Mahindra

Indian Bank

(iii) Housing loan
The above loan is personally guaranteed

HDFC Bank

Amount Amount Amount
Total No. of . tstanding oL g ding
Ihetalinsnts Earliest Start Date Maturity Rate of Interest Asat As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
48 equal monthly
instalments after February 7, 2022 January 7, 2026 8.25% 63.66 66.00 =
moratorium of 1 year
36 equal monthly
instaiments after January 7, 2022 | December 7, 2024 40.72 44.00 -
moraterium of 1 year
49-47 equal monthly
instalments after
iecabostin of 41:24 February 15, 2022 | January 15, 2028 8.30% 95.16 62.20 -
moenths
by Shri Rajendra Sethia, Director of the Company.
Amount Amount Amount
Total No. of " itstanding outstanding Ve |
Instalments Earliest Start Date Maturity Rate of Interest Asat Asst Aai ik
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
6.95% p.a.ona
180 May 20, 2021 May 31, 2036 varlaiis tuin liaals 39.29 -
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

(b) 1% Redeemable Non Cumulative

Preference Shares

1% Red: ble Non-Ci ive Prefe Shares (Preference shares) were issued on March 27, 2014 for a term of 10 years. The coupon on the preference of 1% was below market
rate and accordingly on the transition to Ind AS, it was fair valued and the difference between the carrying amount and fair value (as on transition date i.e. April 1, 2020) of Rs. 43.04
Millions was recognised in other equity. The Company has redeemed the preference shares on March 10, 2022, earlier than its maturity date. The difference between the carrying amount
and redemption amount of Rs. 23.49 Millions has been recognised as "Loss on early redemption of preference shares” under other expenses.

(c) Unsecured borrowings from others
Unsecured borrowings from others represents borrowings from body corp which is repayable on demand.

(d) Quarterly return or statements filed with banks

The parent Company has filed quarterly retums or statements with the banks in lieu of the sanctioned working capital facilities. There was no material difference between the amount of
trade receivables (billed) reported to the banks, except for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, whereby the reported amount of trade receivables (billed) were lower by
Rs. 264.80 millions and Rs. 244.67 millions respectively. Such differences were due to adjusiments pursuant to reconciliation with the customers.

(e) Wilful defaulter
The Holding company, it's subsidy and it's associates company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any
government authority.

(f) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Register of Ci y (ROC)
The Holding Company and it's Subsidy and it's Associates company do not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond
the statutory period.

Note 20: Other financial liabilities

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Non-current
(a) Trade payables - deferred payment obligations - - 45.23
- - 45.23
Current
(a) Book overdrafts - 15.86 ]
(b) Payable to employees 34.19 19.79 11.70
(c) Other payables 26.83 3.83 14.72
Total Other financial liabilities 61.02 39.48 26.42
Other current payable includes payable to capital creditors of Rs. 23.63 Millions (March 31, 2021 - Rs. Nil and April 1, 2020 - Rs. Nil)
Note 21: Provisions
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Non-current
Provisions for employee benefits
Employee defined benefit obligation - Gratuity [Refer note 33] 22.04 14.67 11.91
Total Long-term provisions 22.04 14.67 11.91
Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Employee defined benefit obligation - Gratuity [Refer note 33] 2.68 2.27 2.67
Total Short-term provisions 2.68 2.27 2.67

Note 22: Trade payables

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note (a) below)

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 649.50 779.31 917.54
Total Trade payables 649.50 779.31 917.54
Ageing of trade payables

As at March 31, 2022 _
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years MW:::':" 3 Total

MSME - - - - e 3 "

Others - 649.50 - - - 649.50

Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -

Disputed Dues- Others - - - - - -

Total - 649.50 - - - 649.50

As at March 31, 2021
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo‘r:.lr:n 2 Total

MSME - - - - = =

Others - 779.31 - - - 779.31

Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -

Disputed Dues- Others - - - = - ”

Total = 779.31 = - - 779.31

As at April 1, 2020
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mors: thin.3 Total
!lll"

MSME - - - = = =

Others - 917.54 - - - 917.54

Disputed dues-MSME - - - - . -

Disputed Dues- Others - - - - - =

Total - 917.54 - - - 917.54
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(a) The ageing has been determined from the date of the invoice.

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

(b) As per information available with the Group there are no dues of micro and small enterprises and accordingly the information required under the MSME Act,

2008 are not required. The same has been relied by the auditors.

(c) There are no disputed dues of any creditors as on March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, respectively

Note 23: Other current liabilities

(a) Statutory Dues
(b) Deferred Income
Total Other current liabilities
Note 24: Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with customers
(a) Revenue from Freight, Handling, Agency & Other Charges

Total revenue from operations

Note:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
47.15 37.78 38.54
- - 4.52
47.15 37.78 43.06

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
14,708.75 11,101.12
14,708.75 11,101.12

(a) The Group recognises revenue when control over the services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

(b) The Group does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and

Loss.

(c) The Group recognises revenue from rendering of services overtime, as when such services are performed.

Note 25: Other income

(a) Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
(i) Interest income from loans to body corporate and others
(i) Interest income from deposits with banks
(b) Insurance claims
(c) Other miscellaneous income
Total other income

Note 26: Operational expenses

(a) Freight, Handling & Other Charges
Total Operational expenses

Note 27: Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(c) Gratuity (Refer note 33)
(d) Staff welfare expenses
Total employee benefits expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

17.51 2.10
17.56 21.54
4.12 4.76
9.95 9.45
49.14 37.85

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

12,804.09

9,607.17

12,804.09

9,607.17

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

313.99 243.71
14.71 11.10
5.53 3.83
36.14 18.50
370.37 277.14

L
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Note 28: Finance costs

(a) Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- Interest expenses on short-term borrowings from banks and financial institutions

- Interest expenses on term loans banks
- Interest expenses on Preference shares classified as liabilities
- Interest expenses on loans from body corporate
- Interest on other long-term financial liabilities
(b) Interest on lease obligations
(c) Other borrowing costs
Total finance costs

Note 29: Depreciation and amortisation expense

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipments
(b) Amortisation of intangible assets
(c) Depreciation of right of use assets

Total depreciation and amortisation expense

Note 30: Other expenses

(a) Donation and subscriptions
(b) Corporate social responsibility expenses [Refer Note 40]
(c) Loss on early redemption of preference share
(d) Rent expenses
(e) Repairs and maintenance
- Vehicle and equipment
(f) Maintenance and upkeep charges
(g) Electricity expenses
(h) Bank charges
(i) Travelling and conveyance expenses
(j) Insurance charges
(k) Printing & stationery expenses
(I) Telephone expenses
(m) Auditors’ Remuneration [Refer 30.1 below]
(n) Loss on sale of assets
(o) Allowance for doubtful debts

(p) Other general expenses
Total other expenses

30.1 Auditors’ Remuneration

Audit fees - statutory audit
Audit fees - tax audit
Total auditors remuneration

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

80.85 86.26
34.07 17.13
11.43 1142
0.59 0.57

- 4.52
473 5.32
7.53 5.05
139.20 129.97

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

99.15 102.49
0.53 0.43
16.32 13.00
116.00 115.92

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

4.03 4.17
11.58 4.93
23.49 -
26.60 32.86

291.98 258.49

8.00 5.7

3.79 3.47

2,98 2.37
35.60 26.02

6.39 4.79

4.95 4.43

4.14 3.61

1.21 0.51

- 0.19

1.07 0.90

68.82 56.10
494.63 408.55

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

1.06 0.38
0.15 0.13
1.21 0.51
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Note 31: Earmnings per share

Profit after tax for the year (in Rs. Millions)

Profit available to the equity shareholders (in Rs. Millions) (a)

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year

Number of equity shares at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (b)
Nominal value of each equity share (in Rs.)

Basic eamnings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.)
Diluted earnings per equity share (a/b) (in Rs.)

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year
ended
March 31, 2022

For the year
ended
March 31, 2021

611.29
611.29
3,93,49,700
3,93,49,700
3,93,49,700
10.00

15.53
15.53

445.27
44527
3,93,49,700
3,93,49,700
3,93,48,700
10.00

11.32
11.32

There have been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorization of these financial statemer

Note 32: Contingencies and Committments
(a) Contingent liabilities

Claims not acknowledged as debts
- Income - tax

(b) Commitments

Capital commitments to the extent not provided for net of advances

Note 33: Employee Benefits
Employees Defined Contribution Plans - Provident Fund

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
- 1.15 -
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
65.19 116.86 116.86

The Group provides Provident Fund facility its eligible employees. The fund is managed by Commissioner of the Providend Fund. The contributions are expensed as they
are incurred in line with the treatment of wages and salaries. The liability of the Company is limited to the contribution deducted from the salary of the employee and the
Company’s share. The Group has recognized, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, an amount of Rs. 14.71 Millions Lakhs (for the year ended March 31,

2021: Rs 11.10 Millions) as expenses under defined contribution plans.
Employee Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity [Unfunded]

The Group provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary
multiplied by the number of years of service completed, subject to the maximum amount of Rs. 2 Million. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan. The Group does not fully

fund the liability and make the payments as and when they become due from its own funds.

Amounts recognised in the financial statements

The amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets is as under:

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Current service cost
Interest expense/ income

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience

Total amount recognised in OCI
Employer contributions/ premium paid
Benefit payments

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Current service cost
Interest expense/ income

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gain)loss from change in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience

Total amount recognised in OCI
Employer contributions/ premium paid
Benefit payments

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Defined benefit |Fair value of plan
= Net amount
obligations assets

14.58 - 14.58

2.81 - 2.81

1.02 - 1.02

3.83 - 3.83

017 - 0.17

(1.29) - (1.29)
(1.12) - (1.12)

- (3.63) (3.63)

0.35 (3.63) (3.28)

16.94 - 16.94

4.36 - 436

1.17 - 1.17

5.53 - 553

0.05 - 0.05

2.53 - 2.53

2.58 - 2.58

- (0.34) (0.34)

0.34 (0.34) -

24.72 - 24,72
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(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)
Classification of the obligation into current and non current

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Current 2.68 227 2.67
Non-Current 22.04 14.67 11.91
24.72 16.94 14.58
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions
¢ 3 3 As at As at As at
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Rate of discounting 7.10% 6.90% 7.00%
Rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality rate during employment ln_dian Assured In_dian Assur_ed In_dian Assurgd
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) ultimate | (2012-14) ultimate | (2012-14) ultimate

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Discount rate (+/- 1%) 2.00 (2.34) 1.34 (1.56)
Salary growth rate (+/- 1%) (2.43) 2.1 (1.62) 1.40

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one ancther as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(iv) Major categories of plans asset
The scheme is unfunded.

(v) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Pay-as-you-go Risk:

For unfunded schemes financial planning could be difficult as the benefits payable will directly affect the revenue and this could be widely fluctuating from year to year.
Moreover there may be an opportunity cost of better investment returns affecting adversely the cost of the scheme.

Discount rate risk:
The Group is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit thereby increasing

the value of the liability.

Liquidity Risk:

This risk arises from the short term asset and liability cash-flow mismatch thereby causing the company being unable to pay the benefits as they fall due in the short term.
Such a situation could be the result of holding large illiquid assets disregarding the results of cash-flow projections and cash outgo inflow mismatch. (Or it could be due to
insufficient assets/cash.)

Future Salary Increase Risk:
The Scheme cost is very sensitive to the assumed future salary escalation rates for all final salary defined benefit Schemes. If actual future salary escalations are higher
than that assumed in the valuation actual Scheme cost and hence the value of the liability will be higher than that estimated.

Demographic Risk:
In the valuation of the liability certain demographic (mortality and attrition rates) assumptions are made. The Group is exposed to this risk to the extent of actual experience
eventually being worse compared to the assumptions thereby causing an increase in the scheme cost.

Regulatory Risk:
Gratuity Benefit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended up-to-date). There is a risk of change in the regulations requiring
higher gratuity payments (e.g. raising the present ceiling of Rs. 2 Millions, raising accrual rate from 15/26 etc.)

(vi) Other disclosures

a. Expected contribution for next year (12 months), i.e. 2022-23: Rs. 8.55 Millions
b. Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.21 years (March 31, 2021: 5.05 years, April 1, 2020: 5.13 years)
c. Estimated Cash Flows (Undiscounted) in subsequent years

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Within 1 year 2.68 2.27 2.66
2to 5 years 8.31 5.42 4.61
6to 10 years 9.32 6.33 5.24
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Note 34: Financial Instruments and fair value measurements
The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group at the end of the year and the transition date is as under:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Classification of
the assets / X ) )
liabilities Sirying Fair value Canrying Fair value CiRyI Fair value
amount amount amount
Financial assets
Investments in equity instruments FVOCI 7.47 7.47 7.47 7.47 7.47 7.47
Loans Amortised Cost 163.49 163.49 280.67 280.67 348.38 348.38
Trade receivables Amortised Cost 3,113.89 3,113.89 2,523.52 2,523.52 1,865.54 1,865.54
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised Cost 25.45 25.45 34.30 34.30 61.50 61.50
Other balances with bank Amortised Cost 107.25 107.25 74.75 74.75 31.97 31.97
Other Financial assets (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 312.75 312.75 325.71 325.71 358.54 358.54
Total 3,730.30 3,730.30 3,246.42 3,246.42 2,673.40 2,673.40
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings (including current maturity) Amortised Cost 310.70 304.92 454.55 438.74 290.93 269.19
Short-term borrowings Amortised Cost 1,193.26 1,193.26 902.28 902.28 670.26 670.26
Lease liabilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 41.12 41,12 55.35 55.35 56.87 56.87
Trade payables Amortised Cost 649.50 649,50 779.31 779.31 917.54 917.54
Other financial liabilities (Current & non-current) Amortised Cost 61.02 61.02 39.48 39.48 71.65 71.65
Total 2,255.60 2,249.82 2,230.97 2,215.16 2007.25 1,985.51

(i) The carrying amounts of current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost closely approximate to their fair values as the impact of discounting
on such financial assets or liabilities is not significant considering the instruments matures in a very short time.

(i) Unsecured loans from related parties are repayble on demand and accordingly represents its fair value.

(iii) Long-term security deposits are repayable on closure of contracts i.e., repayable on demand and accordingly carrying amount reflect its fair values. The same
can be categorised as Level 3 fair value.

(iv) Long-term borrowings carries both fixed and variable rate of interest. For variable interest rate borrowings, carrying amounts are considered to represent fair
value of such borrowings. For fixed rate borrowings fair values have been determined using discounted cash flow approach using the current interest rates.
The fair values of the borrowings can be categorised as Level 2 fair values.

(v) Fair value of investment in equity instruments is determined using the cost method. The fair value of the investments is classified level 3. There is no
significant operations in the investee entity and accordingly there are no significant changes in the fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair
value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

(a) Level 1 - Quoted prices in an active market:
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

(b) Level 2 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with observable inputs:
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

(c) Level 3 - Fair values determined using valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs:
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and financial liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable
current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data,

There are no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
Note 35: Capital management

Risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to:

(a) safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and

(b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.




The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Group which comprises issued
share capital and accumulated reserves disclosed in the statement of changes in equity and debts appearing as part of the borrowings.

The capital structure of the Group is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day
needs. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants, The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity, long term borrowings and short term borrowings.

Note 36: Reconciliation of debt
This section sets out an analysis of debt and the movements therein

As at As at At
| M Ao
310.70 337.97 183.97
Long-term borrowings including current maturities - 116.58 106.96
1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares 1,193.26 902.28 670.26
Short-term borrowings 41.12 55.35 56.87
Lease obligations (current and non-current) 1,545.08 1,412.18 1,018.06
1%
;‘::3;?:;3 Redeemable Lease
Non Short-term | obligations
including
fpaasy, Cumulative | borrowings |(current and
3 Preference non-current)
maturities
Shares

Net debt as at April 1, 2020 183.97 106.96 670.26 56.87
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken during the year - - - 8.99

Proceeds from borrowings during the year 234.37 - 232.02 -
Interest expense for the year 17.13 11.12 86.83 532
Interest paid during the year (17.13) (1.50) (86.83) (5.32)
Repayment of borrowings / lease liability during the year (80.37) - - (10.51)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 337.97 116.58 902.28 55.35
Borrowings recognised for new leases taken during the year - = - 0.87

Proceeds from borrowings during the year 76.11 - 290.98 -
Interest expense for the year 34.07 11.43 81.44 4.73
Interest paid during the year (34.07) (1.50) (81.44) (4.73)

Loss on early redemption of preference share - 23.49 - -
Repayment of borrowings / lease liability during the year (103.38) (150.00) - (15.10)
Net debt as at March 31, 2022 310.70 - 1,193.26 41.12

Note 37: Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Group is exposed primarily to fluctuations in interest rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of
its financial instruments. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group, the Group has risk management policies as described
below:

(A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions, other financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group through established policy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally carrying 30 to 60 days credit terms. The Group has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer
receivables at various levels within the organisation to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation. The Group periodically assesses the financial
reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and ageing of accounts receivable.

Financial assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk.

The requirement for impairment is analysed at each reporting date. The Group' receivables turnover is quick and historically, there was no significant defaults
on account of those customer in the past. Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is
required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses. The Group has used a practical expedient by
computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The outstanding receivables are regularly monitored to minimise the credit risk.

Other financial instruments and bank deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group's finance department in accordance with the Group's policy. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Group's Board of
Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make
payments.

Balances with banks and deposits are placed only with highly rated banks/financial institution.
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Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally
performed in accordance with practice and limits set by the Group.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity Groupings based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances
as the impact of discounting is not significant.
As at March 31, 2022

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Less than 1 1-2 years 23 years More than 3 Total

year years
Borrowings 1,302.36 77.72 64.98 108.43 1,553.49
Lease liabilities 18.46 12.38 12.30 4,50 47.64
Trade payables 649,50 - - - 649.50
Other financial liabilities 61.02 = - N 61.02
Total financial liabilities 2,031.34 90.11 77.28 112.93 2,311.65
As at March 31, 2021 St ) 1-2 years 2-3 years oo Total

year years
Borrowings 1,028.27 117.28 221.12 79.76 1,446.42
Lease liabilities 19.83 18.46 12.38 16.80 67.47
Trade payables 779.31 - " " 779.31
Other financial liabilities 39.48 - - - 39.48
Total financial liabilities 1,866.89 135.74 233.50 96.56 2,332.68
As at April 1, 2020 Lessthan | 4 ovears | 23years |Morethan3|

year years
Borrowings 763.31 78.79 37.31 151.48 1,030.90
Lease liabilities 15.83 19.83 18.46 29.18 83.30
Trade payables 917.54 - - - 917.54
Other financial liabilities 71.65 - - - 71.65
Total financial liabilities 1,768.34 98.62 55.77 180.66 2,103.38
Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the

future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure on financial liabilities

As at As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2022 2021 April 1, 2021
Fixed rate borrowings 71.87 282,35 290.93
Variable rate borrowings 1,432.09 1,074.48 670.26
Total borrowings 1,503.96 1,356.83 961.19
Sensitivity to changes in interest rates
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ekl Impact on impacton Impact on
profit before P : profit before P 5
tax equity tax equity
Interest expense rates — increase by 50 basis
points (50 bps)* 7.16 5.36 5.37 4.02
Interest expense rates — decrease by 50 basis
points (50 bps)” (7.16) (5.38) (5.37) (4.02)

* Holding all other variables constant

Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes transactions (e.g. sale of goods, foreign currency loan, purchase of raw materials, etc.) denominated in foreign currencies and thus is
exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. The Group evaluates its exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and manages the same
based upon approved risk management policies.

The Group did not have any exposure to the foreign currency as at the year ends. == A P
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Note 38: Related Party Disclosures
(a) List of related parties and relationship

Name

Mr. Rajendra Sethia, Managing Director

Mr. Kanishka Sethia, Whole-time Direclor

Mrs. Sushila Sethia, Whole-time Director

Mr. Sunil Munshi, Indpendent Director

Mr. Bipradas Bhattacharjee, Indpendent Director

Kunal Resources Private Limited
Western Logistics Private Limited
Western Warehousing Private Limited
Western Apartments Private Limited
Western Conglomerate Limited
Western Herbicides Private Limited
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Gipsy Management Private Limited

F M Carriers Private Limited

Success Suppliers Private Limited
SMP Properties Private Limited

(b) Transactions with the related parties

Name of the related parties

Western Warehousing Private Limited
‘Western Conglomerate Limited
‘Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Gipsy Management Private Limited
‘Western Logistics Private Limited

F M Carriers Private Limited

Kunal Resources Private Limited
Western Apariments Private Limited

Kunal Resources Private Limited
Western Warehousing Private Limited
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Western Herbicides Private Limited
Gipsy Management Private Limited

F M Carriers Private Limited

Western Conglomerate Limited

Gipsy Management Private Limited
Western Apariments Private Limited
‘Western Logistics Private Limited
Western Warehousing Private Limited

F M Carriers Private Limited

Rajendra Sethia
Western Warehousing Private Limited

Rajendra Sethia
Kanishka Sethia
Sushila Sethia

Sunil Munshi, Director
Bipradas Bhattacharjee, Director

Relationship

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control

Enterprises where key

or control

Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management persennel has significant influence or control
Enterprises where key management personnel has significant influence or control upto March 23, 2022.

Associate w.e.l March 24, 2022
Associate Company
Associate Company

Nature of transactions

Loans given
Loans given
Loans given
Loans given
Loans given
Loans given
Loans given
Loans given

Loans repaid
Loans repaid
Loans repaid
Loans repaid
Loans repaid
Loans repaid
Loans repaid

Interest on loan
Interest on loan
Interest on loan
Interest on loan

Investment in Shares

Rent Paid
Rent Paid

Directors Remuneration
Directors Remuneration
Directors Remuneration

Sitting fees
Sitting fees

Additional discl pertaining to comp

(a) Short-term employee benefits
(b) Sitting fees

(c) Year end balances with related parties

Name of the related parties

Kunal Resources Private Limited
Western Warehousing Private Limited
Western Kraft & Paper Private Limited
Western Conglomerate Limited
Western Herbicides Private Limited
Gipsy Management Private Limited
Western Logistics Private Limited
F.M. Carriers Private Limited

Western Apartments Private Limited

of key managerial personnel

Nature of balances

Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable
Loans receivable

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- 13.66
0.09 125
- 11.00
- 1.30
- 1.1
1.51 -
107.83 -
31.47 -
6.04 =
3.39 -
11.00 -
- 54.53
5.90 -
0.07 -
1.44 -
8.76 -
11.00 -
9.42 9.42
11.39 -
6.40 3.60
3.60 240
2.80 1.20
0.30 0.25
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
12.80 7.20
0.30 0.25
1310 7.45
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- 1.51
26.27 126.21
- 31.47
2313 2312
- 6.04
51.77 49.84
18.33 16.95
- 11.00
1.18

1.11



Note 39: Segment Disclosures
The Group is engaged in providing logistics and allied services to various customers in India and is a major logistics service provider. The performance of the
Company is assessed and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) as a single operating segment and accordingly logistics and allied
services is the only operating segment.

The Group is domiciled in India, and also provides services in India. The amount of its revenue from external s split by location of the cust s is
shown in the table below.

Revenue from external customers Forthe yearended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
India 14,708.75 11,101.12
Outside India - =
Total 14,708.75 11,101.12

There are no non-current assels located in foreign countries,

Revenues of approximately Rs. 6,744.34 Millions (for the year ended March 31, 2021 - Rs. 4,552.00 Millions) are derived from 3 customers individually having
revenues of 10% or more.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 40: Corporate social responsibility

Amount required to be spent during the year
Amount approved by the board to be spent during the period
Amount spent during the period on:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(i) On purposes other than (i) above
Amount of expenditure incurred
Shortfall at the end of the period
Total of previous years shortfall
Cumulative Shortfall
Nature of CSR activities
Activities specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013
Details of related party transactions

Note 41: Undisclosed Income

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

9.64 7.44

9.64 7.44

- 3.83

11.58 1.10

11.58 493

9.61 251

- 9.04

9.61 11.55

11.58 4.93

The Group did not have any undisclosed income in any of the years which was surrendered / disclosed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 42: Details of benami property

The Holding company, it's subsidy and it's associates company do not have any benami property held in its name and there have been no
proceedings initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988

(45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

Note 43: Analytical Ratios

As at As at
Rt March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 i Romarks
Current Ratio 1.79 1.68 6.70%
Debt-equity ratio 0.58 0.69 -15.38%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.10 3.06 -31.25% Due to repaymisnLif
preference shares
Due to changes on
P the weighted average
Return on investment 0.06 0.04 72.43% period of holding of
investments
Due to higher
Return on Equity Ratio 1.55 113 37.28% revenue from
operation
Inventory turnover ratio N/A N/A N/A
Trade Receivables tumover ratio 5.22 5.06 3.16%
Trade payables turnover ratio 17.92 11.32 58.28% Due t highsr
i : ) operational expenses
Net capital turnover ratio 8.93 8.66 3.11%
Net profit ratio 0.04 0.04 3.61%
Return on Capital employed 0.33 0.30 12.65%
As at As at
Ratios March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 % Change Remarks
Current Ratio 1.68 1.40 20.24%
Debt-equity ratio 0.69 0.63 9.14%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3.06 2.48 23.34%
Return on investment 0.04 0.04 1.06%
Return on Equity Ratio 1.13 0.95 19.03%
Inventory turnover ratio N/A N/A N/A
Trade Receivables tumover ratio 5.06 5.51 -8.23%
Trade payables turnover ratio 11.32 9.77 15.88%
Net capital tumover ratio 8.66 15.29 -43.34% Dueta Incresa by
payment cycle
Net profit ratio 0.04 0.04 14.44%
Return on Capital employed 0.30 0.35 -15.19%




Note 1

Ratios

Current Ratio

Debt-equity ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on investment
Return on Equity Ratio

Inventory tumover ratio

Trade Receivables tumover ratio
Trade payables tumover ratio
Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio
Return on Capital employed

Note 44: Struck off companies

WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Numerator
Current assets
Total debt
Earnings available for debt service=Net Profit
after taxes + Non-cash operating
expenses+interest expense

Income generated from invested funds
Net Profits after taxes — Preference Dividend
Not applicable

Revenue from operations

Operational expenses
Revenue from operations

Net Profits after taxes
Eamings before interest and taxes

The group does not have any transactions with struck off companies.

Note 45: Subsequent events

Denominator
Current liabilities
Total equity
Debt Service=Interest and lease payments +
Principal Repayments

Average invested funds
Average total equity = (Opening+Closing)/2

Not applicable

Average of trade receivables =
(Opening+Closing)/2

Average of trade payables =

Working capital = Current assets - current
liabilities

Revenue from operations

Capital employed = Networth + Long term
borrowing + Lease liability + Deferred tax

There are no significant subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period till the date of these consolidated financial

information.




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 46: Interests in associates

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at March 31, 2022. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which are held directly by the Group. The country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Name of the entity

Success Suppliers Private Limited
SMP Properties Private Limited
F M Carriers Private Limited

i %age of ownership " As at As at
Place of business PR Relationship Accounting method March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
India 33.33% Associate Equity Method 16.45 16.38
India 22.97% Associate Equity Method 462 4.62
India 31.43% Associate Equity Method 11.00 -
32.07 21.00

Success Suppliers Private Limited is engaged in the business of wholesale trading activities.
SMP Properties Private Limited in engaged in the business of Censultancy Services.
F.M Carriers Private Limited in engaged in the business of other supporting logistics service.

The associate companies being unlisted entities quoted market prices are not available,

The associates do not have any commitments or contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and April 1, 2020 respectively.

Note 47: Additional information required by Schedule Iil

Name of the Entities

Holding Company

Western Carriers India Limited
Subsidiary

Western Skyvilla Private Limited
Associates

Success Suppliers Private Limited
SMP Properties Private Limited
F.M Carriers Private Limited

g entities as subsidiaries and
Net Assets, "“I:I:‘:“'i::'“ Do totel Share in Profit or Loss Share in Other comprehensive income | Share in Total comprehensive income
As % of As % of
AD .cf. Amount A of Amount consolidated other Amount consolidated total Amount
consolidated net | .\ pe Millions) | onsolidatednet | o Ml hensi in Rs. Mill hensi in Rs. Milli
Aseate (in Rs. ) profit or loss (inRs. jons) com_pn ensive (in Rs. Millions) comprehensive (in Rs. Millions)
income income
98.37% 2,531.79 99.99% 611.22 100.00% (1.93) 99.99% 609.29
0.38% 9.90 0.00% 0.01 0.00% - 0.00% 0.01
0.64% 16.45 0.01% 0.07 0.00% - 0.01% 0.07
0.18% 4.62 0.00% 0.00 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00
0.43% 11.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% - 0.00%
100.00% 2,573.76 100.00% 611.29 100.00% (1.93) 100.00% 609.36
2.06

Non controling Interests in subsidiary

Western Skyvilla Private Limited




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Note 48: First- time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS

These are the Group's first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2022 and the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and in preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April
1, 2020 (the Group date of transition). In preparing of its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Group has adjusted the amount reported previously in financial
statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other
relevant provisions of the Act (Previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

An explanation of how the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group's consolidated financial statements for the previous years.
Exemptions and exceptions availed

In preparing consolidated financial statements, the Group has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions on the transition date.

A. Ind AS optional exemptions availed

(a) Leases
The Group has adopted Ind AS 1186, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2020 and applied the standard to its leases with modified retrospective

approach, by calculating right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at the beginning of the current period using guidance under Ind AS 116.

(b) Business combination
Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date. This provides relief

from full retrospective application that would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the transition date.

The Group elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Business combinations occurring prior to the
transition date have not been restated.

(c) Designation of previously recognised financial instruments
Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI on the bases of facts and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS.

The Group elected to apply this exemption for investment in equity instruments in Western Apartments Private Limited.

B. Ind AS mandatory exceptions

(a) Estimates
As per Ind AS 101, an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS and at the end of the comparative period presented in the

entity’s first Ind AS financial statements, as the case may be, should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with the previous GAAP
unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting policies.

As per Ind AS 101,where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under previous GAAP,those estimates should be
made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities or at the end of the comparative period
(for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).

The Group estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation of the financial statements that were not
required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

- Impairment of goodwill based on the value in use of assets model.

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

(b) Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the
standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective

application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Group has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.

(a) Reconciliation between equity as per the audited consolidated financial statements and equity as in accordance with the Ind AS consolidated financial statements
prepared.

As at As at
Mo Paninius Notes March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Equity as per the audited financial statements 2,022.56 1,646.02
(a) Reclassification of Preference shares (i) (150.00) (150.00)
(b) Fair valuation adjustment of Preference shares (i) 43.04 43.04
(c) interest on Preference shares using recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) (i) (11.12) -
(d) Reversal of dividend on Preference shares recognised within equity 0] 1.50 -
(e) Reversal of amortisation of goodwill (ii) 31.00 -
(f) Amortisation of fair value gain on long-term/deferred payment liabilities (iii) 4.52 -
(g) Interest on long-term / deferred payment liabilities recognised using EIR (iii) (4.53) -
(h) Depreciation on right-of-use assets (iv) (13.00) -
(i) Interest on lease obligations (iv) (5.32) -
(j) Reversal of rent expense (iv) 15.83 -
(k) Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments (v) (0.43) (0.43)
() Allowances for expected credit loss (vi) (43.03) (42.13)
(m) Tax effect of above items 75.44 23.84
1,966.46 1,520.34

(b) Reconciliation between Profit as per the audited consolidated financial statements and Profit in accordance with the Ind AS consolidated financial statements

prepared. _ =




WESTERN CARRIERS (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

For the year
Notes ended
March 31, 2021
Profit as per the audited financial statements 378.04
(a) interest on Preference shares using recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) (i) (11.12)
(b) Recognition of tax on dividend on preference shares as other expense (i) -
(c) Reversal of amortisation of goodwill (ii) 31.00
(d) Interest on long-term / deferred payment liabilities recognised using EIR (iii (4.52)
(e) Amortisation of fair value gain on long-term/deferred payment liabilities (iii) 452
() Depreciation on right-of-use assets (iv) (13.00)
(g) Interest on lease obligations (iv) (5.32)
(h) Reversal of rent expense (iv) 15.83
(i) Allowances for expected credit loss (vi) (0.90)
(i) Remeasurement of defined benefits employee obligations recognised in OCI (vii) (1.12)
(k) Tax effect of above items 51.87
Profit as per the restated financial statements 445.28
() Remeasurement of defined benefits employee obligations recognised in OCI (vii) 1.12
(m) Tax effect of above items (0.28)
Total comprehensive income as per the restated financial statements 446.12

(c) Reconciliation between the consolidated statement of cash flow as per the audited consolidated financial statements and as per restated consolidated financial

Information
Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flow from operating activities (192.52) 7213 (264.65)
Net cash flow from investing activities (86.62) (64.39) (22.23)
Net cash flow from financing activities 251.94 (7.74) 259.68
Net increase/ Decrease in cash & cash equivalents (27.20) - (27.20)

Notes

(1) 1% Redeemable Non Cumulative Preference Shares

Under previous GAAP, Preference shares were always included as part of equity, however under Ind AS, there are criteria specified for classification of
Preference shares as equity, liability in totality or are bifurcated into equity or liability in case of compound or hybrid instrument. On transition, the Group
assessed Preference shares issued by the Holding Group as liability and accordingly, the entire amount has been classified as liability. Further, the
Preference shares carried a below market rate of interest and accordingly the instrument was fair valued on the date of transition which resulted in fair value
gain. Fair value gains on the date of transition was directly recognised in equity. Subsequent to transition the Preference shares are measured at amortised
cost using effective interest rate (EIR).

The dividends paid on Preference shares under previous GAAP was recognised within equity, however under Ind AS, interest expense determined using
effective interest rate (EIR) is recorded in profit or loss and accordingly the amount recognised with equity is reversed.

Tax on dividend on Preference shares recognised within equity is reclassified and recognised as other expense in the profit or loss considering the instrument
being a liability.

(il) Amortisation of Goodwill
Under the previous GAAP, Goodwill arising on amalgamations were amortised over a period of five years, however under Ind AS, amortisation of Goodwill is

not allowed. It is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet date.

The amount recognised as amortisation of goodwill is reversed. The Group has reassessed the goodwill for impairment and is believes that there is no
impairment either on transition or at the end of each balance sheet date.

(iii) Long-term / deferred payment liabilities
Under previous GAAP, long-term liabilities were initially recognised at the transaction prices, however under Ind AS the same s initially recognised at fair

value adjusted for transaction cost and subsequently measured at amortised costs. On application of Ind AS these liabilities were fair valued on the transition
date and the fair value gain being recognised over the period of obligation. Subsequent to transition, these liabilities are carried at amortised using effective
interest rate method (EIR), accordingly interest expense determined using EIR are recognised in the profit or loss.

(iv) Leases
Under previous GAAP, lease rentals were required to be recognised as expenses in the year of accrual. On transition, the Group recognised a lease liability

measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments and the Group has applied modified retrospective approach with ROU asset equal to lease
liability.

On transition, the Group recognised a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted using the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2020.

In adopting Ind AS 1186, the Group has applied the below practical expedients available in Ind AS 101:

(i) Accounting for leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at April 1, 2020 as short term lease;
(i) Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains option to extend or terminate the lease;
(iii)The Group has not re-assessed whether a contract is or contains a lease at the date of initial application;

(iv) Initial direct costs are excluded from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

The principal portion of the lease payments have been disclosed under cash flow from financing activities.

s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(v) Equity Instruments

(Amounts in Rs. Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Under the Previous GAAP, long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for diminution in the value of investments, if any. Under Ind AS, investment
in equity instruments are carried at fair value through profit and less (FVTPL) unless the entity has elected the irrevocable option to designate the same as fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The Group has elected the irrevocable option to designate the investment in equity instruments as FVOCI

and accordingly, the fair value changes have been recognised within equity.

(vi) Allowances for expected credit losses

Under previous GAAP, the Group provides for provision based on the pre-determined policy which was on the ageing of the debtors. Under Ind AS, the Group
recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss,

(vii) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in other comprehensive income. Under previous GAAP, the Group recognised
such remeasurements in profit or loss. However, this has no impact on the total comprehensive income and total equity as on April 1, 2020 or as on March 31,
2021. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

Note 49: Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The group has not traded or invested in Cropto currency or Virtual Currency durign the financial year.

Note 50: Reclassification

Previous year figures have been regrouped! rearranged/ reclassified wherever necessary. Further, there are no material regroupings/ reclassifications during the year.

Note 51: Approval of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements has been approved for issue by the resolution of the board of directors dated August 31, 2022

For JAI PANDYA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 316071E

T4 ﬂmﬂ?ﬁ”

J.K. PANDYA

Partner

Membership Number: 52678
Kolkata, August 31, 2022

¥R

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Rajendra Sethia Kanishka Sethia
Managing Director Whole time Director
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